
 

 

   
 
 

 

MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT 
BOARD 

 
DATE: THURSDAY, 3 FEBRUARY 2011 
TIME: 7:00PM (PLEASE NOTE LATER START TIME) 
PLACE: THE OAK ROOM, GROUND FLOOR, TOWN HALL 
 
Members of the Committee 
 
Councillor Grant (Chair)  
Councillor Bhavsar (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors Aqbany, Bajaj, Clair, Joshi, Newcombe, Scuplak, Suleman 
and one vacancy. 
 
Standing Invitees (Non-Voting)  
Youth Council Representatives – to be advised 
 
Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to 
consider the items of business listed overleaf. 
 

 
for Director, Corporate Governance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Officer contact :Francis Connolly 
Democratic Support,  
Leicester City Council 

Town Hall, Town Hall Square, Leicester LE1 9BG 
(Tel. 0116 229 8811 Fax. 0116 229 8819) 



 

 
 

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND MEETINGS 
You have the right to attend Cabinet to hear decisions being made.  You can also 
attend Committees, as well as meetings of the full Council.  Tweeting in formal 
Council meetings is fine as long as it does not disrupt the meeting.  There are 
procedures for you to ask questions and make representations to Scrutiny 
Committees, Community Meetings and Council.  Please contact Democratic 
Support, as detailed below for further guidance on this. 
 
You also have the right to see copies of agendas and minutes. Agendas and minutes 
are available on the Council’s website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk or by 
contacting us as detailed below. 
 
Dates of meetings are available at the Customer Service Centre, King Street, Town 
Hall Reception and on the Website.  
 
There are certain occasions when the Council's meetings may need to discuss 
issues in private session.  The reasons for dealing with matters in private session are 
set down in law. 
 
 
WHEELCHAIR ACCESS 
Meetings are held at the Town Hall.  The Meeting rooms are all accessible to 
wheelchair users.  Wheelchair access to the Town Hall is from Horsefair Street 
(Take the lift to the ground floor and go straight ahead to main reception). 
 
 
BRAILLE/AUDIO TAPE/TRANSLATION 
If there are any particular reports that you would like translating or providing on audio 
tape, the Democratic Services Officer can organise this for you (production times will 
depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
 
INDUCTION LOOPS 
There are induction loop facilities in meeting rooms.  Please speak to the Democratic 
Services Officer at the meeting if you wish to use this facility or contact them as 
detailed below. 
 
General Enquiries - if you have any queries about any of the above or the 
business to be discussed, please contact Francis Connolly, Democratic 
Support on (0116) 229 8812 or email francis.connolly@leicester.gov.uk or call 
in at the Town Hall. 
 
Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 252 6081 

 
 
 



 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business on 
the agenda, and/or indicate that Section 106 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992 applies to them.  

 
3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

 

 The Minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2011 have been previously 
circulated and the Board is asked to confirm them as a correct record. 
  
 

4. PETITIONS  
 

 

 The Director, Corporate Governance, to report on the receipt of any petitions 
submitted in accordance with the Council's procedures.  

 
5. QUESTIONS/ REPRESENTATIONS/ STATEMENTS OF 

CASE  
 

 

 The Director, Corporate Governance, to report on the receipt of any petitions 
submitted in accordance with the Council's procedures.  

 
6. TRACKING OF PETITIONS - MONITORING REPORT  
 

Appendix A 

 The Director, Corporate Governance submits a report that further updates 
Members on the monitoring of outstanding petitions.  The Board is asked to 
note the current outstanding petitions.  
 

7. ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY  
 

Appendix B 

 
The Strategic Director, Development, Regeneration and Culture submits a 
report that outlines why the Council needs to address the structural problems of 
New Walk Centre (NWC) and explains how making a positive decision in the 
current financial climate will unlock funding for other purposes and act as a 
catalyst for redefining the Council’s offer to the people of Leicester, changing 
the nature of public service into the future.  The Board is asked to review the 
document and advise Cabinet of its views on the recommendations.  



 

 
8. WATERCOURSE MAINTENANCE AND 

IMPROVEMENT - CAPITAL PROGRAMME FOR 
2010/11  

 

Appendix C 

 The Strategic Director, Development, Culture and Regeneration, submits a 
report that seeks the Board’s consideration of the 2010/11 Watercourse 
Improvement budgets.  The Board is asked to review the document and advise 
Cabinet of its views on the recommendations.  
 

9. ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY TASK GROUP 
- DIVISIONAL RESPONSE - LEICESTER'S FLOOD 
MANAGEMENT AND ALLEVIATION 
ARRANGEMENTS  

 

Appendix D 

 The Director, Regeneration, Transport and Highways submits a report that 
provides an initial response to the recommendations arising from the findings of 
the Environment and Sustainabilility Task Group’s ‘Leicester’s Flood 
Management and Alleviation Arrangements’.  The Board is asked to consider 
the response and decide whether further action or information is required 
before forwarding the report to Cabinet. 
  
 

10. ASHTON GREEN - STAGE 2  
 

Appendix E 

 
The Director of Planning and Economic Development submits a report that 
asks the Board to consider stage 2 of the Ashton Green project following 
outline planning approval at Planning Committee.  The Board is asked to 
review the document and advise Cabinet of its views on the recommendations. 

 
  
 

11. SUB REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
REVIEW  

 

Appendix F 

 
The Strategic Director, Development, Culture and Regeneration, submits a 
report that updates members on the development of a new approach to support 
economic development in the Leicester and Leicestershire sub-region, 
including the establishment of a Local Enterprise Partnership and a Single 
Delivery Vehicle (combining Prospect Leicestershire and Leicestershire 
Promotions).  The Board is asked to review the document and advise Cabinet 
of its views on the recommendations. 
 

 
  
 



 

12. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS  
 

 



 



1 of 2 
Cp2667me 

 

 WARDS AFFECTED 
 All Wards - Corporate Issue 
 
 
 
 

 
FORWARD TIMETABLE OF CONSULTATION AND MEETINGS: 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 3 FEBRUARY 2011 
__________________________________________________________________________  

 
Tracking of Petitions - Monitoring Report 

__________________________________________________________________________  
 
Report of the Director of Corporate Governance 
 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
To  further update Members on the monitoring of outstanding petitions. 

 
2. Report 
 

Since its meeting on 13 March 2008, the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board  
have been receiving information on petitions received within the Council to enable the 
Board to monitor their progress and outcomes. 
 
An Exception Report, showing those petitions currently outstanding or for consideration 
at the current OSMB meeting, is attached. 
 
Both the substantive list of petitions, with outcomes, along with the Exception Report, 
are lodged on the Council’s Internet Site (Democracy Section), alongside associated 
current information which is also posted concerning guidance on the petition process. 
 
Members will also note, that the schedule also contains a written representation of the 
current progress on each of the petitions.  In summary, ‘Green’ denotes that the petition 
has been considered and responded to, ‘Amber’ denotes that the petition was being 
given consideration and work being undertaken on it before a final response and ‘Red’ 
denotes that the petition had not yet been given any detailed consideration. 
 
In addition, following a systemic issue identified at the meeting of OSMB on 7 May 
2009, all Divisional Directors have been asked to ensure that details of all petitions 
received direct into the Council (not just those formally accepted via a Council Meeting 
or similar) are passed to the Director of Corporate Governance for logging and inclusion 
on this monitoring schedule. 
 

3. Recommendations 
 

The Board is asked to note the current outstanding petitions. 
 

Appendix A



2 of 2 
Cp2667me 

 

4. Financial, Legal and Other Implications 
 
 There are no legal, financial or other implications arising from this report. 
  
5. Background Papers – Local Government Act 1972 
 
 None 
 
6. Consultations 
 
 Staff in all teams who are progressing outstanding petitions. 
  
7. Report Author 
 
 Francis Connolly 
 Democratic Services Officer 
 Extn. 398812 
 
 



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

09/08/139 Councillor Gordon Request for improved maintenance

and facilities at Playground on

Clarendon Park Road

(C) 112 Castle 3 September (C) Adrian Russell Options for new play equipment on

this site had been drawn up so that

the pupils at Avenue Primary School

could choose their favourites. The

consultation with pupils took place in

the Summer term.

Members of OSMB indicated at their

meeting on 13 May that they would

ensure that this petition was strongly

monitored to completion.  

A plaque in memory of Councillor

Gordon and for the work he gave

towards his local area had been

prepared and will be displayed when

the improved facilities open. Adrian

Russell, Director Envornment,

attended OSMB on 4th November

2010 and stated that some new items

of equipment had been delivered. All

items of equipment have now been

delivered and the projct is scheduled

to be complete by the end of February

2011.                                                                    

At it's meeting on

13 May 2010,

OSMB agreed to

act as the lead

for this petition.  

AMBER

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD

TRACKING OF PETITIONS –  

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 1



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

09/11/159 Mr Joe Carroll First Bus – Services in New Parks, 

Braunstone Frith and Kirby Frith

(P) 270 New Parks 25th November 

(C)

Jeff Miller A report was produced and provided

to the Task Group Leader, a copy was

sent to the Lead Petitioner. The report

noted that the view of the bus

company was that sufficient services

were provided for the passenger

numbers, but they would keep the

matter under review. The Council had

no powers to affect the number of

services provided by the bus

companies.

Ward Councillors have raised

concerns about the number of

services provided in the area, the

times at which they are provided and

the routes that they took. Officers

raised issues with First Bus at a

meeting on 6 July. Discussions are

continuing with First regarding these

services and the concerns expressed

by the petitioners.

Councillor Hall

undertook to

discuss the

response at a

residents 

meeting.

AMBER

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 2



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

10/05/001 Scott Kennedy-

Lount

Petition requesting car parking

facilities on Kelso Green, Eyres

Monsell

(P) 28 Eyres Monsell June (C) Jeff Miller Officers held a site visit with Cllr. 

Cleaver on 2nd June to look into the 

issues of over-riding on the verge and 

bare ground problems at Kelso Green.              

A meeting took place which instigated 

consultation process with residents in 

the area.  The majority of residents 

that responded would like to be able 

to park their cars in their front 

gardens.  

Detailed plans have been received 

from highways providing options and 

costs for improvements to Kelso 

Green.   The residents concerned will 

be written to so that they are informed 

of the work that will be undertaken.  

Work is due to start early 2011, with a 

date for commencement to be 

confirmed, and be completed by 

March 2010.

AMBER

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 3



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

10/05/002 Scott Kennedy-

Lount

Petition requesting security

measures for communal area in

Hesketh Avenue and Runcorn

Close 

(P) 10 Eyres Monsell June (C) Dave Pate Site visit took place in June to look at 

higher security gates. Officers in 

discussions with residents about 

improving security lighting for 

bungalows on the streets.

Consultation is going ahead regarding 

the replacement of low level fences 

and gates with high level fences and 

gates, and security lighting. 

Around 50% of residents have 

completed a survey in relation to the 

issue and the majority would prefer to 

see high gates and security lighting 

installed.  A quote is awaited for the 

new style plastic fencing, a response 

for which has been chased. Once this 

is received, officers will be seeking to 

gain funds for the project to be carried 

out.

AMBER

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 4



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

10/06/001 Councillor Cleaver Petition request for a school 

crossing patrol on Hillsborough 

Road to get to Rolleston School.

 (C) 181 Eyres Monsell 24th June 2010 Trevor Pringle Two previous attempts to recruit a 

new patroller at this site have proved 

unsuccessful. 

Further local recruitment advertising 

will take place after the half term 

holiday. 

An existing patroller who lived close to 

the school was offered the position 

but declined. A new recruitment 

campaign commenced on 2 

November 2010.

As a result of the local campaign, an 

application has been received from a 

local resident. The applicant has been 

interviewed and the appointment is 

progressing through the pre-

employment checks (references, 

medical clearance, enhanced CRB 

check).

Due to the delay in completing the 

petition response, the Lead Officer 

has offered to meet with the Ward 

Councillors.

An interim 

response was 

sent to the Lead 

Petitioner - 5 July 

2010

AMBER

10/08/001 Councillor Shah Petition objecting to removal of 

fence - Albermarle Close.

Humberstone 

and Hamilton

Council - 16 

September 2010

Andrew Smith A letter has been sent to the lead 

petitioner by a planning officer which 

explains that the temporary fence will 

be retained until the development of 

the adjoining allotments takes place 

and that the removal of the fence 

would provide a safe link between 

Albermarle Close and the children's 

play area.  Presently, the fence is 

planned to be removed. There is no 

set date for the removal of the fence 

as it would be once the development 

on the allotment site is completed.

The response pro-

forma has been 

completed and 

the 

recommendation 

was supported by 

Councillor 

Newcombe, task 

Group Leader on 

7 January 2011.

GREEN

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 5



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

10/08/002 Vijyalaxmi Dattani Petition - requesting repair or 

replacement of lift - Purcell Road, 

St Marks.

Latimer Lynn Cave The problem is known to officers and 

the problems have been caused by 

vandalism rather than lift-condition.  A 

residents meeting on the matter took 

place on 19 August 2010, and an 

technical examination has highlighted 

an issue with the 'safety gear' which 

needs to be addressed before the lift 

is placed back into service.  As a 

result of vandalism, all lift doors and 

the operating drive are in the process 

of being changed for a heavier duty 

arrangement.  The lift returned to 

service on 30 November 2010 and to 

date no new problems have arisen 

with the lift.

The CCTV camera has been ordered 

and is expected to be installed before 

the end of January 2011.  Building 

works and general electrical works to 

improve access into the lift motor 

room to provide improved lighting and 

additional safety features were 

completed on 15 October.

AMBER

10/08/004 Miss Charles Petition requesting cleaning 

improvements

City Wide Adrian Russell This petition was sent directly to the 

Divisional Director who produced a 

response report, recommending that 

officers from the street cleansing 

service and the City Wardens would 

jointly inspect each issue and feed 

them into relevant Community 

Meeting Ward Action Plans.  

Response Report 

sent to Councillor 

Joshi in July 

2010

AMBER

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 6



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

10/09/002 Councillor Aqbany Petition around problems 

experienced by Foundation 

Housing and Astra Housing 

Association residents

(C) 9 Spinney Hills Response pro forma has been 

prepared which recommends that the 

petition be passed to the relevant 

housing associations and the police.

The relevant 

Task Group 

Leader is Cllr 

Aqbany.  As he is 

also the Lead 

Petitioner, the 

response pro 

forma to be 

brought to OSMB 

Agenda Meeting 

on 17 February 

2011.

AMBER

10/10/001 Mr Crawford Petition requesting installation of 

speed limit and Vehicle Activated 

Signs on Marfitt Street.

(P) 72 Belgrave Received from 

Belgrave & 

Latimer 

Community 

Meeting 

23/9/2010

Jeff Miller A general policy for the assessment of 

vehicle activated signs is currently 

being compiled.  The outcome of this 

report will effect this particular 

request, so a response pro forma will 

be prepared once the initial report is 

completed around Christmas. Officers 

have completed 5 surveys and have 

another 10 to complete, but these are 

weather dependent.It is proposed that 

these continue in January, with the 

report compiled a couple of weeks 

following completion of the surveys.

AMBER

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 7



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

10/10/002 A.C Wilcox Petition requesting to alter the 

green on Pen Close into parking 

for residents.

(p) 11 Eyres Monsell Dave Pate Funding to proceed with such a 

request is unlikely to be gained at 

present.  

Officers have met and held 

discussions with the lead petitioner. 

Due to the location of where the 

wanted additional parker and lack of 

funds, the lead petitioner was advised 

that it was not likely to be possible to 

undertake this work. Alternatives have 

been discussed, including marking the 

existing bays, putting up signs for 

"Resident Parking Only" and planting 

shrubs on the Green to discourage 

youths playing football. Consultation 

on these proposals is currently being 

conducted with residents the closing 

date for which is Friday 14th January. 

To date only 2 responses have been 

received, therefore at present it looks 

unlikely any improvement work will be 

carried out.

AMBER

10/11/001 Mrs Pragna Popat Petition requesting a safe crossing 

on Maidenwell Avenue, outside 

Kestrels' Field Primary School, 

Hamilton

(p) 125 Humberstone 

and Hamilton

Council - 25 

November 2010

Jeff Miller A meeting was held with the Lead 

Petitioner on 10 December 2010. 

Speed readings will be undertaken on 

Maidenwell Avenue at school time. 

This will be done in January 2011 

when the new term starts. The exact 

timing will be weather dependant in 

order to obtain accurate 

measurements, from which a report 

will be completed.

The Lead Officer will is scheduled to 

meet with the Police and the school 

w/c 17th January 2010.

AMBER

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 8



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

10/11/002 Cllr Scuplak Petition objecting to the closure of 

the Thurnby Lodge Housing Office

(c) 791 Thurncourt Council - 25 

November 2010

Dave Pate As this petition received more than 

750 signatures, the Director, Housing 

Serves attended OSMB on 17 

January 2011 to present evidence in 

relation to the petition.

All who signed the petition were 

written to in December 2010 to 

explain that the office was to close on 

it's least busy days of the week.

The Board noted the evidence and 

closed the petition at it's meeting, but 

made a recommendation with regard 

to the petition

GREEN

10/11/003 Mr Peter Fisher Petition asking the Council  to take 

more action to reduce CO2 

emissions

(p) 132 City Wide Council - 25 

November 2010

Jeff Miller An overview of the measures taken by 

the Council and a table of responses 

to the areas of action outlined in the 

petition has been compiled and 

provided to the Lead Petitioner.

Officers have also offered to meet 

with the Lead Petitioners to discuss 

the matters arising from the petition.

The Lead Officer has now been asked 

to complete the response proforma

Letter sent to 

Lead petitioner 

on 4 January 

2011

AMBER

10/12/001 Mr Clinton Ingrams Petition asking the Council to alter 

the times of parking restrictions on 

the following roads - Brookdale 

Road, Cathkin Close, Chevin 

Avenue, Elsham Close, Woodhill 

Close

(p) 144 New Parks Jeff Miller The Ward Councillors and emergency 

servies were written to regarding the 

request for the waiting restriction to 

be amended.  The pro forma has 

been completed which recommends 

that the petitioner's requests be 

accepted, and that the TRO 

procedure continue. 

A report will now be written to ask the 

Director to advertise the proposals.  

As any objections receieved have to 

be considered by the Council, there is 

no guarantee that the Order will go 

ahead. 

Response pro 

forma sent to 

Councillor 

Newcombe on 24 

January 2011

Letter sent to 

Lead petitioner 

on 17 December 

2010

AMBER

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 9



Ref. No. Received From Subject Type - Cncr 

(C) Public 

(P)

No. of Sig Ward Date Receipt 

Reported to 

Council (C) / 

Committee 

(Cttee)

Lead 

Divisional 

Director 

Summary of Outcome Task Group 

Leader 

Involvement

Date of Final 

Response Letter 

Sent to Lead 

Petitioner

Current Level 

of Progress

11/1/001 Mr Mohammed 

Jassat

Petition asking the Council to 

introduce residents parking on 

Wood Hill

(p) 10 Charnwood Jeff Miller Passed to Divisional Director RED

11/1/002 Mr Zuneid Jakhura Petition around problems 

experienced by residents on 

Columbine Road aroudn noise and 

distrubance caused by Arriva 58 

and 58A buses.

(p) 59 Humberstone 

and Hamilton

Council - 27 

January 2011

Jeff Miller Passed to Divisional Director RED

11/1/003 Mr Jeff Dennis Petition requesting re-instatement 

of parking metres on Welles Street

(p) 144 Abbey Council - 27 

January 2011

Jeff Miller Passed to Divisional Director RED

Progress key:

Red - petition not yet been considered.

Amber - petition being considered before a response.

Green - petition had been considered and responded to. 10



WORD2003/2903.D/OSMB/NJG/latest 24.1.11  1 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

WARDS AFFECTED: 
CITYWIDE 

 

 
  
OSMB 3 FEBRUARY 2011 
CABINET 7 FEBRUARY 2011 
____________________________________________________________________  
 

OFFICE ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY 
____________________________________________________________________  

Report of the Strategic Director, Development, Regeneration and Culture  
 
1. Purpose of Report  
 

1.1. This report outlines why the Council needs to address the structural problems 
of New Walk Centre (NWC) and explains how making a positive decision in 
the current financial climate will unlock funding for other purposes and act as 
a catalyst for redefining the Council’s offer to the people of Leicester, 
changing the nature of public service into the future. 

 
1.2. The report considers the results of the options appraisal project and sets out a 

strategy for the provision of office accommodation that is modern, flexible, 
efficient and cost effective.  This will facilitate new ways of working, be 
customer focused, improve service delivery and realise cultural change. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 
 

1) note the need for positive action to address the issues at NWC and the 
benefits to be gained in terms of releasing funding for other purposes, 
the opportunity to improve customer accessibility, drive 
transformational change and improve efficiency, 

 
2) consider the outcomes of the options appraisal project and support the 

need to continue forward with 2 options and confirm that options 3 and 
4 be preferred, 

 
3) approve the continuation of the options appraisal project to enable 

further work on options 3 and 4, and authorise the release of £85,000 
from the CLABs capital allocation to fund the additional work, 

Appendix B



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

2
 

  
4
) 

d
e
le
g
a
te
 
a
u
th
o
rity

 
to
 
th
e
 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
, 
in
 
c
o
n
s
u
lta

tio
n
 
w
ith

 
th
e
 

L
e
a
d
e
r, to

 s
e
le
c
t b

e
tw

e
e
n
 o
p
tio

n
s
 3
 a
n
d
 4
 a
t th

e
 e
n
d
 o
f th

e
 e
x
te
n
d
e
d
 

a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
p
e
rio

d
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
u
p
o
n
 
w
h
ic
h
 
o
p
tio

n
 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 
th
e
 
m
o
s
t 
c
o
s
t 

e
ffe

c
tiv

e
 s
o
lu
tio

n
 a
n
d
 to

 e
n
te
r in

to
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 c
o
n
tra

c
ts
 to

 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 th

e
 

p
re
fe
rre

d
 o
p
tio

n
 a
n
d
 re

le
a
s
e
 fu

n
d
in
g
 fro

m
 th

e
 C

L
A
B
s
 c
a
p
ita

l a
llo

c
a
tio

n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
, 

 
5
) 

a
u
th
o
ris

e
 th

e
 a
p
p
o
in
tm

e
n
t o

f c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l a

g
e
n
ts
 to

 n
e
g
o
tia

te
 te

rm
s
 fo

r 
p
o
te
n
tia

l p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o

f M
e
rc
u
ry
 b
u
ild

in
g
 to

 b
e
 fu

n
d
e
d
 fro

m
 th

e
 C

L
A
B
s
 

a
llo

c
a
tio

n
,  

 6
) 

n
o
te
 a

c
tio

n
 ta

k
e
n
 u

n
d
e
r P

a
rt 4

(d
) R

u
le
 1

4
 o

f th
e
 C

a
b
in
e
t P

ro
c
e
d
u
re
 

R
u
le
s
 
in
 
re
le
a
s
in
g
 
£
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 
fro

m
 
c
a
p
ita

l 
a
llo

c
a
tio

n
 
to
 
fu
n
d
 
u
rg
e
n
t 

w
o
rk
s
 
a
n
d
 
m
o
v
e
s
 
re
s
u
ltin

g
 
fro

m
 
th
e
 
e
n
g
in
e
e
rs
’ 
re
p
o
rt 

a
n
d
 
a
u
th
o
ris

e
 

re
le
a
s
e
 o
f a

 fu
rth

e
r £

1
5
8
,0
0
0
 to

 c
o
m
p
le
te
 fu

n
d
in
g
 th

e
 w

o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 m

o
v
e
s
 

fin
a
lly
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
. 

 
7
) 

£
1
.6
5
 
m
illio

n
 
is
 
re
le
a
s
e
d
 
to
 
fu
n
d
 
th
e
 
IT
 
tra

n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
 
w
h
ic
h
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 
b
e
fo
re
 
a
n
y
 
la
rg
e
 
s
c
a
le
 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 m

o
v
e
s
 c
a
n
 ta

k
e
 p
la
c
e
.  T

h
is
 in

c
lu
d
e
s
 re

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t o

f 
th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il’s

 te
le
p
h
o
n
e
 n
e
tw

o
rk
, w

h
ic
h
 c
a
n
 n
o
t b

e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
lly
 re

lo
c
a
te
d
 

fro
m
 N

e
w
 W

a
lk
 C

e
n
tre

, a
n
d
 a
 to

ta
l s

o
ftw

a
re
 re

fre
s
h
 o
f e

v
e
ry
 d
e
s
k
 to

p
 

a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt 

a
n
y
w
h
e
re
, 

a
n
y
tim

e
 
w
o
rk
in
g
; 

th
e
 

in
tro

d
u
c
tio

n
 
o
f 
m
o
d
e
rn
 
c
o
lla

b
o
ra
tio

n
 
to
o
ls
 
a
n
d
 
s
o
ftw

a
re
 
to
 
fa
c
ilita

te
 

g
re
a
te
r s

e
lf s

e
rv
ic
e
 b
y
 s
ta
ff a

n
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
.  

 
8
) 

a
u
th
o
ris

e
 

o
ffic

e
rs
 

to
 

c
o
n
tin

u
e
 

w
o
rk
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 
h
u
b
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
fa
c
ilita

te
 
th
e
 
m
o
v
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta
ff 

p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

lo
c
a
l 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
to
 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 
lo
c
a
tio

n
s
 
th
a
t 

m
a
k
e
 
th
e
m
 
m
o
re
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 to

 lo
c
a
l p

e
o
p
le
.  

 
9
) 

re
le
a
s
e
 £
1
6
5
,0
0
0
 fo

r th
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t o

f th
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

 3
. 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

3
.1
 

T
h
e
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
s
 fa

c
in
g
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il a

n
d
 P

u
b
lic
 S

e
c
to
r a

re
 re

s
u
ltin

g
 in

 
a
 re

th
in
k
 o
f th

e
 s
h
a
p
e
 a
n
d
 n
a
tu
re
 o
f p

u
b
lic
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 in

 th
e
 c
ity
 fo

r th
e
 

fu
tu
re
 a
n
d
 th

e
re
 is

 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity
 fo

r th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il to

 re
v
ie
w
 h
o
w
 th

e
 fo

rm
 a
n
d
 

u
s
e
 o
f o

ffic
e
s
 c
a
n
 b
e
 a
 k
e
y
 d
riv

e
r w

h
ile

 a
d
d
re
s
s
in
g
 th

e
 p
h
y
s
ic
a
l s

h
o
rtc

o
m
in
g
s
 

o
f th

e
 e
x
is
tin

g
 e
s
ta
te
. 

 3
.2
 

 In
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
0
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il re

c
e
iv
e
d
 a
 re

p
o
rt o

n
 th

e
 s
tru

c
tu
re
 o
f N

W
C
 fro

m
 O

v
e
 

A
ru
p
 w

h
ic
h
 id

e
n
tifie

d
 th

a
t th

e
 s
tru

c
tu
re
 fa

lls
 s
h
o
rt o

f th
e
 re

c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio

n
s
 in

 
c
u
rre

n
t c

o
d
e
s
 a
n
d
 n
e
e
d
s
 s
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
.  T

h
e
ir m

a
in
 c
o
n
c
e
rn
 w

a
s
 th

e
 p
o
te
n
tia

l 
fo
r s

h
e
a
r fa

ilu
re
 le

a
d
in
g
 to

 p
ro
g
re
s
s
iv
e
 c
o
lla

p
s
e
 a
n
d
 th

e
re
fo
re
 u
n
d
e
rto

o
k
 a
 ris

k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t in

v
o
lv
in
g
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f th

e
 s
tru

c
tu
re
 b
e
fo
re
 b
e
in
g
 a
b
le
 to

 
g
iv
e
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 th

a
t th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il c

o
u
ld
 re

m
a
in
 in

 o
c
c
u
p
a
tio

n
.  T

h
is
 a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

w
a
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t to

 th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il d

e
s
ig
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
c
u
rin

g
 s
tru

c
tu
ra
l s

tre
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 

w
o
rk
s
 w

ith
in
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
s
 re

a
d
y
 fo

r w
o
rk
s
 to

 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 to

 a
n
 

a
g
re
e
d
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
in
tro

d
u
c
tio

n
 
o
f 
a
 
rig

o
ro
u
s
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
re
g
im

e
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 c
le
a
rin

g
 o
f a

 s
e
rie

s
 o
f ‘n

o
 im

p
o
s
e
d
 lo

a
d
 z
o
n
e
s
’. 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

3
 

 3
.3
 

S
in
c
e
 re

c
e
ip
t o

f th
e
 re

p
o
rt th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il h

a
v
e
 s
ig
n
ific

a
n
tly
 re

d
u
c
e
d
 lo

a
d
 w

ith
in
 

th
e
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
, h

a
v
e
 c
le
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
a
rc
a
te
d
 th

e
 ‘n

o
 im

p
o
s
e
d
  lo

a
d
 z
o
n
e
s
’ a

n
d
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
a
d
d
itio

n
a
l 
p
ro
p
p
in
g
 
b
e
n
e
a
th
 
th
e
 
IT
 
s
u
ite

 
a
n
d
 
fo
o
d
 
s
e
rv
e
ry
. 
 
T
h
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a
re
 in

s
p
e
c
te
d
 w

e
e
k
ly
 to

 e
n
s
u
re
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 to

 th
e
 n
e
w
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 3
.4
 

T
h
e
s
e
 a
c
tio

n
s
 m

e
e
t th

e
 e
n
g
in
e
e
rs
’ a

p
p
ro
v
a
l b

u
t m

u
s
t b

e
 a
llie

d
 to

 s
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv

e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
n
 s
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 o
r re

lo
c
a
tio

n
 a
n
d
 a
n
 o
p
tio

n
s
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l p

ro
je
c
t w

a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y
 C

a
b
in
e
t in

 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
0
 to

 lo
o
k
 a
t a

lte
rn
a
tiv

e
s
.  It is

 c
ritic

a
l th

a
t th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
n
o
w
 
ta
k
e
 
p
o
s
itiv

e
 
a
c
tio

n
 
a
s
, 
if 

th
e
 
e
n
g
in
e
e
rs
 
fe
e
l 
th
a
t 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
tiv

e
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 
is
 
n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 
m
a
d
e
, 
th
e
n
 
th
e
y
 
c
o
u
ld
 
w
ith

d
ra
w
 
th
e
ir 

s
u
p
p
o
rt 

fo
r 

c
o
n
tin

u
e
d
 o
c
c
u
p
a
tio

n
, w

ith
 th

e
 re

s
u
lt th

a
t th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’s

 in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 

in
v
a
lid

a
te
d
 a
n
d
 th

e
re
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
 a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 b
u
t to

 v
a
c
a
te
 th

e
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

ith
 

m
in
im

a
l 
n
o
tic

e
. 

 
T
h
is
 
w
o
u
ld
 
h
a
v
e
 
m
a
jo
r 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
c
o
n
tin

u
ity

 
a
n
d
 
c
o
s
t 

im
p
lic
a
tio

n
s
. 

 3
.5
 

T
h
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
 re

a
s
o
n
 fo

r p
o
s
itiv

e
 a
c
tio

n
 lie

s
 w

ith
in
 th

e
 c
u
rre

n
t fin

a
n
c
ia
l p

o
s
itio

n
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

is
 
fa
c
e
d
 
w
ith

. 
 
T
h
e
 
o
ffic

e
 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 
s
tra

te
g
y
 
h
a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 fu

n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 th

e
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l w

o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
 to

 d
a
te
 in

d
ic
a
te
s
 th

a
t a

 
s
o
lu
tio

n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 fo

u
n
d
 w

h
ic
h
 w

o
u
ld
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
n
 th

e
 fu

n
d
in
g
 a
lre

a
d
y
 

b
u
d
g
e
te
d
 
fo
r 
a
n
d
 
a
 
p
o
s
itiv

e
 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
w
a
y
 
fo
rw

a
rd
 
w
ill 

e
n
a
b
le
 
th
is
 

s
a
v
in
g
 to

 b
e
 p

ro
p
e
rly

 id
e
n
tifie

d
 a

n
d
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 fo

r re
a
llo

c
a
tio

n
 to

w
a
rd
s
 o

th
e
r 

p
rio

ritie
s
. 

 3
.6
 

T
h
e
 th

ird
 re

a
s
o
n
 fo

r a
c
tio

n
 a
g
a
in
 re

la
te
s
 to

 th
e
 c
u
rre

n
t fin

a
n
c
ia
l c

lim
a
te
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 n
e
e
d
 fo

r th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il to

 re
d
e
fin

e
 its

 o
ffe

r to
 th

e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f L

e
ic
e
s
te
r a

n
d
 th

e
 

o
ffic

e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 s
tra

te
g
y
 c
a
n
 a
c
t a

s
 th

e
 c
a
ta
ly
s
t fo

r th
is
 tra

n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
.   

 
T
h
e
 
s
tra

te
g
y
 
in
te
g
ra
te
s
 
w
ith

 
th
e
 
w
id
e
r 

tra
n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
 
a
g
e
n
d
a
 
e
n
a
b
lin

g
 

M
e
m
b
e
rs
 to

 re
d
e
fin

e
 th

e
 o
ffe

r to
 th

e
 p
e
o
p
le
 o
f L

e
ic
e
s
te
r in

to
 th

e
 fu

tu
re
 w

ith
 

s
u
c
h
 a
 re

d
e
s
ig
n
 o
f s

e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 re

lia
n
t u

p
o
n
 th

e
 in

tro
d
u
c
tio

n
 o
f n

e
w
 w

a
y
s
 o
f 

w
o
rk
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rte

d
 b
y
 IT

 in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.  A

g
ile

 w
o
rk
in
g
 is

 a
 p
a
rtn

e
rs
h
ip
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 

p
e
o
p
le
, p

la
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 te

c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
; it’s

 a
b
o
u
t d

e
liv
e
rin

g
 g
re
a
te
r a

c
c
e
s
s
ib
ility

 a
n
d
 

c
h
o
ic
e
 to

 o
u
r c

u
s
to
m
e
rs
 a
n
d
 c
re
a
tin

g
 b
e
tte

r e
n
v
iro

n
m
e
n
ts
 fo

r o
u
r e

m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
.  

T
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 o
f in

te
g
ra
tin

g
 p
ro
p
e
rty

 a
n
d
 IT

 s
tra

te
g
ie
s
 to

 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 v
a
rie

ty
 o
f 

s
tim

u
la
tin

g
 w

o
rk
s
p
a
c
e
s
 th

a
t a

re
 s
u
ite

d
 to

 th
e
 d
iffe

re
n
t ty

p
e
s
 o
f a

c
tiv

ity
 s
ta
ff 

p
ro
v
id
e
, 
b
u
t 
d
o
in
g
 
s
o
 
in
 
a
 
w
a
y
 
th
a
t 
e
x
p
a
n
d
s
 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
a
t 
a
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 le

v
e
l w

h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

 3
.7
 

T
o
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt 

o
u
r 
tra

n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
a
l 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
w
e
 
n
e
e
d
 
to
 
in
v
e
s
t 
in
 
m
o
d
e
rn
 

fle
x
ib
le
 
IC
T
 
s
o
lu
tio

n
s
 
th
a
t 
a
re
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
b
e
fo
re
 
a
n
y
 
m
a
jo
r 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 c
a
n
 s
ta
rt.  A

s
 w

e
 b
e
g
in
 to

 ta
lk
 a
b
o
u
t d

iffe
re
n
t m

o
d
e
ls
 o
f d

e
liv
e
ry
 it w

ill 
b
e
 im

p
o
rta

n
t to

 m
a
k
e
 s
u
re
 th

a
t p

e
o
p
le
 d
o
 n
o
t w

o
rk
 in

 s
ilo

s
 a
n
d
 th

a
t th

e
y
 w

o
rk
 

a
s
 ‘o

n
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’,  IT

 w
ill b

e
 c
ritic

a
l in

 e
n
s
u
rin

g
 th

is
.  C

o
lle

a
g
u
e
s
 in

 IT
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 w

o
rk
in
g
 fo

r s
o
m
e
 m

o
n
th
s
 to

 fin
d
 s
o
lu
tio

n
s
 th

a
t w

ill s
u
p
p
o
rt fle

x
ib
le
 

w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ra
c
tic

e
s
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 u
s
e
rs
 c
a
n
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 IT

 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 (v

o
ic
e
 a
n
d
 d
a
ta
) in

 
a
 s
e
a
m
le
s
s
 fa

s
h
io
n
 w

h
e
re
v
e
r th

e
y
 a
re
.      

 3
.8
 

T
h
is
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 s
ta
ff w

ith
 g
re
a
te
r fle

x
ib
ility

 a
n
d
 e
n
a
b
le
s
 th

e
m
 to

 w
o
rk
 in

 m
o
re
 

c
re
a
tiv

e
 w
a
y
s
 w

h
ils
t o

p
tim

is
in
g
 s
p
a
c
e
 u
tilis

a
tio

n
 a
n
d
 re

d
u
c
in
g
 th

e
 c
o
s
t. 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

4
 

 3
.9
 

T
h
ro
u
g
h
 th

e
 s
tra

te
g
y
 w

e
 a
re
 lo

o
k
in
g
 to

 m
e
e
t o

u
r s

ta
te
d
 a
s
p
ira

tio
n
s
 a
n
d
 v
is
io
n
 

fo
r o

ffic
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 in

to
 th

e
 fu

tu
re
 (s

e
e
 A

p
p
e
n
d
ix
 I), p

ro
v
id
in
g
 s
ta
ff a

n
d
 

v
is
ito

rs
 w

ith
 a
 n
e
w
 p
e
rc
e
p
tio

n
 o
f w

h
a
t th

e
 c
ity
 s
ta
n
d
s
 fo

r a
n
d
 its

 v
is
io
n
 fo

r th
e
 

fu
tu
re
. 
 
It 

a
ls
o
 
e
n
s
u
re
s
 
w
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
th
e
 
fle

x
ib
ility

 
to
 
re
s
p
o
n
d
 
to
 
ra
p
id
 
fu
tu
re
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
, 
d
e
m
o
n
s
tra

te
s
 V

F
M
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 
w
h
o
le
 life

 c
o
s
tin

g
 a

n
d
 
w
ill c

o
n
trib

u
te
 

p
o
s
itiv

e
ly
 to

 th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’s

 c
o
m
m
itm

e
n
ts
 o
n
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ility

. 
 3
.1
0
 

F
iv
e
 o
p
tio

n
s
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 a
p
p
ra
is
e
d
 w

ith
 th

e
 re

s
u
lts

 th
a
t o

p
tio

n
s
 3
 a
n
d
 4
 

(p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o

f M
e
rc
u
ry
 B

u
ild
in
g
 a

n
d
 re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o

f A
 B

lo
c
k
) a

re
 fa

v
o
u
re
d
, 

b
o
th
 
fin

a
n
c
ia
lly
 
a
n
d
 
w
h
e
n
 
ju
d
g
e
d
 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
w
id
e
r 
c
rite

ria
. 
 
T
h
e
 
re
p
o
rt 

s
e
e
k
s
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
to
 
th
e
 
s
e
le
c
tio

n
 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 
a
s
 
p
re
fe
rre

d
 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
w
o
rk
e
d
 
u
p
 

fu
rth

e
r. 

 3
.1
1
 

T
h
e
 
p
o
te
n
tia

l 
a
v
a
ila

b
ility

 
o
f 

th
e
 
M
e
rc
u
ry
 
B
u
ild

in
g
 
p
ro
v
id
e
s
 
a
n
 
e
x
c
itin

g
 

o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity
 
to
 
a
d
d
re
s
s
 
th
e
 
p
ro
b
le
m
s
 
w
ith

 
N
e
w
 W

a
lk
 
C
e
n
tre

 
a
n
d
 
re
p
la
c
e
 
a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r o

f o
u
r o

th
e
r o

ld
e
r, u

n
s
u
ita

b
le
 in

e
ffic

ie
n
t c

ity
 c
e
n
tre

 o
ffic

e
s
. 

 3
.1
2
 

M
o
v
in
g
 o
u
r H

Q
 to

 th
e
 M

e
rc
u
ry
 w

o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 s
ig
n
ific

a
n
t b

o
o
s
t to

 th
e
 

C
u
ltu

ra
l 
Q
u
a
rte

r 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
Q
u
a
rte

r, 
a
lth

o
u
g
h
 
th
e
re
 
w
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 

p
o
te
n
tia

l 
n
e
g
a
tiv

e
 
im

p
a
c
ts
 
in
 
th
e
 
v
ic
in
ity

 
o
f 
N
W
C
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 
th
e
 
s
ite

 
n
o
t 
b
e
 

re
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 q
u
ic
k
ly
. 

 3
.1
3
 

P
a
rts

 
o
f 
th
e
 
b
u
ild

in
g
 
w
e
re
 
re
fu
rb
is
h
e
d
 
in
 
th
e
 
la
s
t 
1
0
 
y
e
a
rs
 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 
th
e
 

re
c
la
d
d
in
g
 
o
f th

e
 e

x
te
rio

r o
f th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
, a

lth
o
u
g
h
 it d

o
e
s
 s
till n

e
e
d
 fu

rth
e
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t in

c
lu
d
in
g
 re

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t/u

p
g
ra
d
in
g
 o
f s

e
rv
ic
e
s
, lifts

, IT
 in

fra
s
tru

c
tu
re
 

e
tc
.  H

o
w
e
v
e
r th

e
 fo

rm
e
r p

rin
t w

o
rk
s
 to

 th
e
 re

a
r o

f th
e
 b
u
ild

in
g
 (fro

n
tin

g
 o
n
 to

 
S
t G

e
o
rg
e
’s
 W

a
y
) o

ffe
r u

s
 th

e
 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity
 to

 s
ig
n
ific

a
n
tly
 in

c
re
a
s
e
 th

e
 c
u
rre

n
t 

flo
o
r s

p
a
c
e
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 m

o
d
e
rn
, e

ffic
ie
n
t e

n
v
iro

n
m
e
n
t th

a
t w

o
u
ld
 

e
n
a
b
le
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f o

u
r k

e
y
 o
b
je
c
tiv

e
s
 a
s
 s
e
t o

u
t in

 th
e
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ic
e
s
. 

 4
. 

R
e
p
o
rt 

 4
.1
 

 F
iv
e
 
d
iffe

re
n
t 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 
w
h
ic
h
 
a
ll 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
fo
r 
a
 
5
0
%
 

re
d
u
c
tio

n
 in

 th
e
 e
x
is
tin

g
 c
e
n
tra

l o
ffic

e
 flo

o
r p

la
te
 a
n
d
 a
re
 o
u
tlin

e
d
 b
e
lo
w
 w

ith
 

th
e
 c
o
m
p
a
ra
tiv

e
 c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 re

v
e
n
u
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
.  A

ll th
e
 o
p
tio

n
s
 in

c
lu
d
e
 fo

r th
e
 

re
te
n
tio

n
 o
f th

e
 T
o
w
n
 H

a
ll w

ith
 its

 e
x
is
tin

g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
u
m
e
 th

e
 re

lo
c
a
tio

n
 

o
f th

e
 IT

 d
a
ta
 c
e
n
tre

 c
u
rre

n
tly
 h
o
u
s
e
d
 in

 B
 B

lo
c
k
.  F

o
r o

p
tio

n
s
 th

a
t re

ta
in
 a
 

p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 
a
t 
N
W
C
 
s
ite

 
it 

is
 
a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
 
C
e
n
tre

 
w
ill 

re
m
a
in
 

th
e
re
, fo

r o
th
e
r o

p
tio

n
s
 it is

 a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 th

a
t th

e
 B

is
h
o
p
 S

tre
e
t b

u
ild

in
g
 w

ill b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 in

 v
ie
w
 o
f th

e
ir o

ff c
e
n
tre

 lo
c
a
tio

n
s
.  A

ll o
p
tio

n
s
 re

q
u
ire

 th
e
 re

te
n
tio

n
 o
f 

s
o
m
e
 o
f th

e
 o
th
e
r c

ity
 c
e
n
tre

 o
ffic

e
s
 th

a
t th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il c

u
rre

n
tly
 o
c
c
u
p
y
. 

 

O
p
tio

n
 1
 

 S
tru

c
tu
ra
l 
s
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
N
W
C
 
A
 
a
n
d
 
B
 
b
lo
c
k
s
 
w
ith

 
re
te
n
tio

n
 o
f o

n
e
 o
th
e
r b

u
ild

in
g
 w
ith

in
 th

e
 p
o
rtfo

lio
. 

 O
p
tio

n
 2
 

 N
e
w
 b
u
ild

 o
n
 D

o
v
e
r S

tre
e
t c

a
r p

a
rk
 s
ite

 w
ith

 re
te
n
tio

n
 o
f o

th
e
r b

u
ild

in
g
s
. 

 O
p
tio

n
 3
 

 A
c
q
u
is
itio

n
 
a
n
d
 
re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
M
e
rc
u
ry
 
b
u
ild

in
g
 
w
ith

 
re
te
n
tio

n
 
o
f 
o
th
e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
. 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

5
 

 O
p
tio

n
 4
 

 S
tru

c
tu
ra
l s

tre
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o

f A
 B

lo
c
k
 o
n
ly
 a
n
d
 re

te
n
tio

n
 o
f 

o
th
e
r b

u
ild

in
g
s
.  D

e
m
o
litio

n
/s
a
le
 o
f B

 B
lo
c
k
 to

 fo
llo
w
. 

 
O
p
tio

n
 5
 

 D
e
m
o
litio

n
 
o
f 
B
 
B
lo
c
k
, 
w
ith

 
n
e
w
 
b
u
ild

 
o
n
 
its

 
s
ite

 
a
n
d
 
re
te
n
tio

n
 
o
f 
o
th
e
r 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
.  D

e
m
o
litio

n
/s
a
le
 o
f A

 B
lo
c
k
 to

 fo
llo
w
. 

 4
.2
 

C
o
s
ts
 

 
 T
h
e
 c
a
p
ita

l c
o
s
ts
 o
f th

e
 v
a
rio

u
s
 o
p
tio

n
s
, th

e
 d
ire

c
t re

v
e
n
u
e
 im

p
lic
a
tio

n
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 th

e
n
 im

p
a
c
t o

n
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’s

 b
u
d
g
e
t p

o
s
itio

n
 is

 o
u
tlin

e
d
 in

 d
e
ta
il in

 s
e
c
tio

n
 

6
.  F

ro
m
 a
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l p

e
rs
p
e
c
tiv

e
, o

p
tio

n
s
 3
 a
n
d
 4
 a
re
 p
re
fe
rre

d
. 

 4
.3
 

O
p
tio

n
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t  

  
In
 a
d
d
itio

n
 to

 fin
a
n
c
ia
l ju

d
g
e
m
e
n
t a

ll o
p
tio

n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 ju

d
g
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t c

rite
ria

 
o
f 
im

p
ro
v
e
d
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
s
p
a
c
e
, 
s
u
p
p
o
rt 

o
f 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 
tra

n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
, 

re
d
u
c
tio

n
 in

 C
o
u
n
c
il’s

 c
a
rb
o
n
 fo

o
tp
rin

t, d
is
tu
rb
a
n
c
e
, im

p
a
c
t o

n
 th

e
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

, 
tra

v
e
l, tra

n
s
p
o
rt a

n
d
 im

p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 to

 c
u
s
to
m
e
r a

c
c
e
s
s
.  R

e
s
u
lts

 a
re
 o
u
tlin

e
d
 

in
 A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 II a

n
d
 o
p
tio

n
s
 3
 a
n
d
 4
 s
c
o
re
 h
ig
h
e
s
t. 

 4
.4
 

A
ll 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
s
h
o
w
 
a
 
c
a
rb
o
n
 
re
d
u
c
tio

n
 
o
f 
in
 
e
x
c
e
s
s
 
o
f 
5
4
%
 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
e
x
is
tin

g
 

e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 fro

m
 th

e
 c
e
n
tra

l o
ffic

e
 e
s
ta
te
 w

ith
 o
p
tio

n
 3
 th

e
 h
ig
h
e
s
t a

t 6
4
.2
7
%
 

s
a
v
in
g
.  O

p
tio

n
 4
 o
ffe

rs
 6
1
.8
4
%
 s
a
v
in
g
. 

 4
.5
 

N
e
x
t S

te
p
s
 

 4
.5
.1
 
In
 
th
e
 
lig

h
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio

n
 
to
 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 
w
ith

 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
3
 
a
n
d
 
4
, 
a
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
 p
la
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
u
t to

g
e
th
e
r  to

 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 w

o
rk
 a
n
d
 d
e
ta
ile

d
 

c
o
s
tin

g
 o
f a

 s
c
h
e
m
e
 fo

r th
e
 re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o

f th
e
 M

e
rc
u
ry
 b
u
ild

in
g
 to

 s
u
it th

e
 

re
q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts
 o
f th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il a

n
d
 to

 fu
rth

e
r in

te
rro

g
a
te
 o
p
tio

n
 4
. 

 4
.5
.2
 
U
p
o
n
 re

c
e
ip
t o

f th
e
 c
o
s
tin

g
s
 a
n
d
 v
a
lu
a
tio

n
 it w

ill th
e
n
 b
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 to

 o
p
e
n
 

n
e
g
o
tia

tio
n
s
 w

ith
 th

e
 M

e
rc
u
ry
 re

g
a
rd
in
g
 th

e
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
f th

e
ir b

u
ild

in
g
 a
n
d
 th

e
 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l a

g
e
n
ts
 w

ill b
e
 e
m
p
lo
y
e
d
 fo

r th
is
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
 s
o
 th

a
t, s

h
o
u
ld
 te

rm
s
 b
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
, 
th
e
 
to
ta
l 
c
o
s
t 
o
f 
o
p
tio

n
 
3
 
w
ill 

b
e
 
e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
ju
d
g
e
d
 

a
g
a
in
s
t o

p
tio

n
 4
.  

 4
.5
.3
 
A
 fu

rth
e
r w

o
rk
s
tre

a
m
 w

ill b
e
 th

e
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f d

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t b

rie
fs
 fo

r th
e
 N

W
C
 

s
ite

, s
h
o
u
ld
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il re

lo
c
a
te
, a

n
d
 o
th
e
r b

u
ild

in
g
s
 to

 b
e
 re

le
a
s
e
d
 b
y
 th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il, 

s
o
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 
u
s
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
im

a
g
e
s
 
fo
r 

th
e
 
s
ite

 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
s
 a
 firs

t s
te
p
 to

w
a
rd
s
 th

e
 m

a
rk
e
tin

g
 a

n
d
 e
a
rly

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t o

f 
th
e
m
, w

h
ic
h
 is

 a
 c
ritic

a
l s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 fa

c
to
r fo

r th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t. 

 4
.5
.4
 
It 

is
 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 
to
 
n
o
w
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 
a
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
fo
r 
th
e
 
im

p
le
m
e
n
ta
tio

n
 
a
n
d
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f p

re
fe
rre

d
 o
p
tio

n
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
itio

n
a
l m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t re

s
o
u
rc
e
 is

 re
q
u
ire

d
 

a
n
d
 it is

 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 th

a
t £

1
6
5
,0
0
0
 b
e
 re

le
a
s
e
d
 a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

6
 

 
4
.5
.5
 
In
 v
ie
w
 o
f th

e
 u
rg
e
n
t w

o
rk
s
 th

a
t w

e
re
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 to

 b
e
 p
u
t in

 h
a
n
d
 a
s
 a
 re

s
u
lt 

o
f th

e
 O

v
e
 A

ru
p
 re

p
o
rt to

 m
a
k
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 to

 re
d
u
c
e
 lo

a
d
 in

 
N
W
C
 
a
n
d
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt 

to
 
p
a
rts

, 
th
e
 
D
ire

c
to
r 
o
f 
S
tra

te
g
ic
 

A
s
s
e
t M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t, a

fte
r c

o
n
s
u
lta

tio
n
 w

ith
 C

a
b
in
e
t L

e
a
d
 a
n
d
 C

h
a
ir a

n
d
 P
a
rty

 
S
p
o
k
e
p
e
rs
o
n
s
 o
f th

e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ria

te
 S
c
ru
tin

y
 C

o
m
m
itte

e
 to

o
k
 u
rg
e
n
t a

c
tio

n
 u
n
d
e
r 

P
a
rt 

4
(d
) 
R
u
le
 
1
4
 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 
R
u
le
s
 
to
 
re
le
a
s
e
 
a
n
 
in
itia

l 
£
1
0
0
,0
0
0
 fro

m
 th

e
 C

L
A
B
s
 c
a
p
ita

l b
u
d
g
e
t.  

T
h
e
 
w
o
rk
s
 
a
n
d
 m

o
v
e
s
 a

re
 
n
o
w
 

n
e
a
rin

g
 c
o
m
p
le
tio

n
 a
n
d
 to

ta
l c

o
s
t w

ill b
e
 in

 th
e
 re

g
io
n
 o
f £

2
5
8
,0
0
0
, a

n
d
 fu

rth
e
r 

re
le
a
s
e
 o
f fu

n
d
in
g
 is

 re
q
u
ire

d
. 

 
 

5
. 

F
u
tu
re
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
in
g
 

 5
.1
 

In
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w

ith
 th

e
 re

c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio

n
s
 o
f th

is
 re

p
o
rt it is

 n
o
w
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 to

 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 
fu
rth

e
r 
w
ith

 
tw
o
 o

p
tio

n
s
 
to
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 
th
e
 
d
e
ta
il 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
in
 

te
rm

s
 o
f d

e
s
ig
n
, c

o
s
t a

n
d
 d
e
liv
e
ra
b
ility

. 
 5
.2
  

L
in
k
a
g
e
 
to
 
o
th
e
r 
tra

n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
a
l 
a
g
e
n
d
a
s
 
is
 
c
ritic

a
l 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
p
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill 

c
o
n
tin

u
e
 
to
 
w
o
rk
 
c
lo
s
e
ly
 
w
ith

 
n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 
w
o
rk
in
g
, 
O
n
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

O
n
e
 

C
o
n
tra

c
t a

n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt S

e
rv
ic
e
s
 to

 e
n
s
u
re
 in

te
g
ra
tio

n
.  T

h
e
 P
ro
je
c
t B

o
a
rd
 (B

u
ilt 

A
s
s
e
ts
 G

ro
u
p
) in

c
lu
d
e
s
 re

p
re
s
e
n
ta
tio

n
 fro

m
 a
c
ro
s
s
 th

e
 k
e
y
 p
la
y
e
rs
 in

 lin
k
e
d
 

p
ro
je
c
ts
. 

 5
.3
 

It 
is
 
n
o
w
 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 
a
u
th
o
rity

 
b
e
 
d
e
le
g
a
te
d
 
to
 
th
e
 
C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
tiv

e
 
in
 

c
o
n
s
u
lta

tio
n
 w

ith
 th

e
 L
e
a
d
e
r to

 s
e
le
c
t b

e
tw

e
e
n
 o
p
tio

n
s
 3
 a
n
d
 4
 a
n
d
 th

e
n
 to

 
e
n
te
r in

to
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 
c
o
n
tra

c
ts
 
a
n
d
 a

rra
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 to

 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 th

e
 p

re
fe
rre

d
 

o
p
tio

n
. 

 6
. 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l Im

p
lic
a
tio
n
s
  (N

ic
k
 B
o
o
th
, E

x
tn
. 2

9
7
4
6
0
) 

 

T
h
e
 re

p
o
rt o

u
tlin

e
s
 5

 p
o
te
n
tia

l o
p
tio

n
s
 fo

r re
s
o
lv
in
g
 th

e
 s
tru

c
tu
ra
l p

ro
b
le
m
s
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 N

e
w
 W

a
lk
 C

e
n
tre

 a
n
d
 ra

tio
n
a
lis
in
g
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’s

 c
o
re
 a
d
m
in
is
tra

tiv
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 p
o
rtfo

lio
.  T

h
e
s
e
 o
p
tio

n
s
 a
re
 a
s
 fo

llo
w
s
: 

 

• 
O
p
tio

n
 1
 - R

e
p
a
ir a

n
d
 R

e
fu
rb
is
h
 N
W
C
 A
 a
n
d
 B
 b
lo
c
k
s
. 

• 
O
p
tio

n
 2
 - N

e
w
 b
u
ild

 o
n
 D
o
v
e
r S

tre
e
t. 

• 
O
p
tio

n
 3
 - A

c
q
u
is
itio

n
 o
f a

d
d
itio

n
a
l b

u
ild

in
g
. 

• 
O
p
tio

n
 4
 - R

e
fu
rb
is
h
 N

W
C
 A
 b
lo
c
k
 o
n
ly
. 

• 
O
p
tio

n
 5
 –
 D

e
m
o
lis
h
 N

W
C
 a
n
d
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild

 o
n
 th

e
 s
ite

. 
 

C
o
u
n
c
il h

a
s
 p
re
v
io
u
s
ly
 a
u
th
o
ris

e
d
 c
a
p
ita

l e
x
p
e
n
d
itu

re
 o
f £

2
9
.9
 m

illio
n
 to

w
a
rd
s
 

th
e
 C

L
A
B
s
 re

v
ie
w
, a

s
 w

e
ll a

s
 a
 fu

rth
e
r re

v
e
n
u
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t o

f £
3
 m

illio
n
 p
a
 w

h
ic
h
 

w
a
s
 m

a
in
ly
 a
n
tic

ip
a
te
d
 to

 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 to

w
a
rd
s
 c
a
p
ita

l fin
a
n
c
in
g
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f th

e
 w

h
o
le
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
. It a

ls
o
 in

c
lu
d
e
d
 a
 re

la
tiv

e
ly
 s
m
a
ll p

ro
v
is
io
n
 fo

r th
e
 la

n
d
lo
rd
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 

B
is
h
o
p
 S

tre
e
t.  T

o
 d
a
te
, £

1
1
,0
2
8
,0
0
0
 h
a
s
 a
c
tu
a
lly
 b
e
e
n
 s
p
e
n
t o

n
 th

e
 C

L
A
B
s
 

re
v
ie
w
 a
n
d
 £
1
1
.2
m
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
itte

d
.  If re

c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio

n
s
 3
, 6

 a
n
d
 9
 a
re
 

a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
, th

is
 w

o
u
ld
 in

c
re
a
s
e
 th

e
 c
o
m
m
itm

e
n
t to

 £
1
1
.5
7
 m

. 
 

A
n
 
a
n
a
ly
s
is
 
o
f 
a
ll 
5
 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
h
a
s
 
in
d
ic
a
te
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
c
u
rre

n
t 
c
a
p
ita

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
u
ffic

ie
n
t fo

r a
ll o

f th
e
m
.  H

o
w
e
v
e
r, th

is
 is

 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 th

e
 a
s
s
u
m
p
tio

n
 

o
f 2

5
%
 fe

w
e
r s

ta
ff a

n
d
 th

e
 u
s
e
 o
f m

o
d
e
rn
 w

a
y
s
 o
f w

o
rk
in
g
. If fo

r e
x
a
m
p
le
 th

e
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
s
ta
ff 

w
a
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
o
n
ly
 
2
0
%
 
re
d
u
c
e
d
, 
th
is
 
w
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
lik
e
ly
 
to
 
c
o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 a
n
 a
d
d
itio

n
a
l £

2
5
0
,0
0
0
 p
.a
. in

 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 c
o
s
ts
.  



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

7
 

 T
h
e
 ta

b
le
 b
e
lo
w
 s
h
o
w
s
 th

e
 e
ffe

c
t o

f th
e
 5
 o
p
tio

n
s
, o

v
e
r th

e
 s
h
o
rt a

n
d
 lo

n
g
e
r 

te
rm

.  It s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 n
o
te
d
, th

a
t m

o
s
t re

v
e
n
u
e
 s
a
v
in
g
s
 w

ill n
o
t b

e
 fu

lly
 re

a
lis
a
b
le
 

u
n
til th

e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 is

 fin
a
lly
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 in

 2
0
1
6
/1
7
. 

 

  
C
a
p
ita

l 
c
o
s
t 

(le
s
s
 n
e
t 

re
c
e
ip
ts
) 

C
a
p
ita

l 
fin

a
n
c
in
g
 

c
o
s
ts
 

(2
0
1
3
/1
4
) 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 

ru
n
n
in
g
 

c
o
s
t/ 

(s
a
v
in
g
s
) 

(fu
ll e

ffe
c
t 

2
0
1
6
/1
7
 

o
n
w
a
rd
s
)* 

C
o
n
tin

g
e
n
c
y
 

N
e
t c

o
s
t 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

N
e
t c

o
s
t 

F
Y
E
 

fro
m
 

2
0
1
6
/1
7
 

 
£
m
 

£
m
  p

.a
. 

£
m
  p

.a
. 

£
m
  p

.a
. 

£
m
  p

.a
. 

£
m
  p

.a
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

O
p
tio

n
 1
 

5
2
.1
 

3
.0
2
 

(1
.6
8
) 

0
.5
0
 

3
.5
2
 

1
.8
4
 

O
p
tio

n
 2
 

4
3
.0
 

2
.3
0
 

(0
.7
0
) 

0
.5
0
 

2
.8
0
 

2
.1
0
 

O
p
tio

n
 3
 

3
1
.1
 

1
.3
5
 

(0
.9
3
) 

0
.5
0
 

1
.8
5
 

0
.9
2
 

O
p
tio

n
 4
 

3
4
.0
 

1
.5
8
 

(0
.8
8
) 

0
.5
0
 

2
.0
8
 

1
.2
0
 

O
p
tio

n
 5
 

4
2
.0
 

2
.2
2
 

(0
.6
8
) 

0
.5
0
 

2
.7
2
 

2
.0
4
 

 
*R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 
ru
n
n
in
g
 
c
o
s
t 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 
e
x
c
lu
d
e
 
a
n
 
a
d
d
itio

n
a
l 
£
2
0
0
k
 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 
fro

m
 

Y
o
rk
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
w
h
ic
h
 
a
re
 
e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 
to
 
b
e
 
a
c
c
ru
e
 
to
w
a
rd
s
 
th
e
 
R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
tio

n
, 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt a

n
d
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t. 

 
A
 b
u
d
g
e
t o

f £
3
m
 p
.a
. w

a
s
 o
rig

in
a
lly
 s
e
t fo

r th
e
 re

v
e
n
u
e
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f th

e
 C

L
A
B
s
 

re
v
ie
w
, a

n
d
 th

e
re
 a
re
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r o

f u
n
c
e
rta

in
tie

s
 a
t th

is
 s
ta
g
e
, h

o
w
e
v
e
r, a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tly

 a
 c
o
n
tin

g
e
n
c
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
d
e
d
 w

ith
in
 th

e
 fig

u
re
s
. H

o
w
e
v
e
r, th

e
 

b
e
s
t p

re
s
e
n
t in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 s
u
g
g
e
s
ts
 th

a
t th

e
 fu

ll b
u
d
g
e
t o

f £
3
m
 w

ill n
o
t n

o
w
 b
e
 

fu
lly
 re

q
u
ire

d
.   

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio

n
s
 
7
 
s
e
e
k
s
 
a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
fo
r 
th
e
 
re
le
a
s
e
 
o
f 
a
 
fu
rth

e
r 
£
1
.6
5
 
m
 

w
h
ic
h
 is

 in
c
lu
d
e
d
 w

ith
in
 a
ll th

e
 e
s
tim

a
te
d
 o
p
tio

n
 c
o
s
ts
.  If th

is
 w

a
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
, it 

w
o
u
ld
 in

c
re
a
s
e
 th

e
 c
o
m
m
itte

d
 c
o
s
ts
 to

 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 £
1
3
m
. 

 
T
h
e
s
e
 
fig

u
re
s
 
a
re
 
c
u
rre

n
t 
b
e
s
t 
e
s
tim

a
te
s
 
in
d
e
x
e
d
 
to
 
th
e
 
m
id
-p
o
in
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 
c
o
n
tra

c
t 
i.e

. 
A
p
ril 

2
0
1
3
. 
 
T
h
e
re
 
a
re
 
p
o
te
n
tia

l 
a
d
d
itio

n
a
l 

s
a
v
in
g
s
 to

 o
p
tio

n
s
 2
 a
n
d
, 3

 if a
 c
h
e
a
p
e
r a

lte
rn
a
tiv

e
 to

 B
is
h
o
p
 S

tre
e
t c

a
n
 b
e
 

fo
u
n
d
 fo

r th
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r s

e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
e
n
tre

.  T
h
e
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o

f N
e
w
 

W
a
lk
 
C
e
n
tre

 
a
re
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
o
n
 
o
u
r 
b
e
s
t 
c
u
rre

n
t 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
s
tru

c
tu
ra
l 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
 o
f th

e
 b
u
ild

in
g
, a

n
d
 th

e
re
 a
re
 a
lw
a
y
s
 d
a
n
g
e
rs
 o
f u

n
fo
re
s
e
e
n
 c
o
s
ts
 

a
ris

in
g
 w
ith

 re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t w

o
rk
s
 o
f th

is
 n
a
tu
re
. 

 
T
h
e
 ta

b
le
 a
b
o
v
e
 re

p
re
s
e
n
ts
 o
u
r b

e
s
t e

s
tim

a
te
 o
f th

e
 c
u
rre

n
t p

o
s
itio

n
 th

o
u
g
h
 

w
ith

 a
 p
ro
je
c
t o

f th
is
 s
iz
e
 a

n
d
 c
o
m
p
le
x
ity
 a

 n
u
m
b
e
r o

f u
n
c
e
rta

in
tie

s
 re

m
a
in
 

a
n
d
 
th
e
 
a
c
tu
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 
a
n
d
 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 
c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
g
re
a
te
r 

o
r 

s
m
a
lle

r. 
S
u
c
h
 

u
n
c
e
rta

in
tie

s
 
w
o
u
ld
 
in
c
lu
d
e
 
a
c
tu
a
l 
te
n
d
e
r 

p
ric

e
s
, 

n
e
g
o
tia

tio
n
 
o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
, 

in
te
re
s
t 
ra
te
s
 
re
la
tin

g
 
to
 
c
a
p
ita

l 
fin

a
n
c
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
s
iz
e
 
o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 

a
c
tu
a
lly
 re

q
u
ire

d
. 

 
O
p
tio

n
s
 
3
 
is
 
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 
a
 
s
a
tis

fa
c
to
ry
 
c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
 
to
 
n
e
g
o
tia

tio
n
s
 
to
 

a
c
q
u
ire

 a
n
 a
d
d
itio

n
a
l b

u
ild

in
g
 a
n
d
 a
s
 s
u
c
h
 c
a
n
’t b

e
 g
u
a
ra
n
te
e
d
 u
n
til th

e
y
 a
re
 

c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 w

ith
 a
 th

ird
 p
a
rty

.   



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

8
 

 T
h
e
 re

p
o
rt re

fe
rs
 to

 th
e
 p
o
te
n
tia

l fo
r s

o
m
e
 s
ta
ff to

 b
e
 re

lo
c
a
te
d
 fro

m
 th

e
 c
ity

 
c
e
n
tre

 C
L
A
B
S
 p
o
rtfo

lio
 in

to
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 a
n
d
 th

e
 fig

u
re
s
 s
h
o
w
n
 ta

k
e
 n
o
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

a
n
y
 
p
o
te
n
tia

l 
w
o
rk
s
 
to
 
p
ro
p
e
rtie

s
 
o
r 

o
th
e
r 

re
lo
c
a
tio

n
 
c
o
s
ts
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 to

 fa
c
ilita

te
 s
u
c
h
 m

o
v
e
s
. 

 

If e
ith

e
r o

f o
p
tio

n
s
 3
 a
n
d
 4
 a
re
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
, th

e
n
 a
s
 b
o
th
 o
f th

e
m
 a
re
 e
s
tim

a
te
d
 

to
 c
o
s
t in

 th
e
 re

g
io
n
 o
f £

2
.0
 m

illio
n
 p
.a
. in

 th
e
 m

e
d
iu
m
 te

rm
, it s

h
o
u
ld
 p
ro
v
e
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
 
to
 
re
a
llo

c
a
te
 
th
e
 
s
a
v
in
g
 
o
f 
£
1
.1
 
m
illio

n
 
fro

m
 
th
e
 
C
L
A
B
s
 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
  

to
w
a
rd
s
 th

e
  2

0
1
1
/1
2
 b
u
d
g
e
t.  It is

 to
 b
e
 n
o
te
d
 th

a
t o

p
tio

n
 4
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
s
te
d
 

o
n
 th

e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f th

e
 m

o
re
 e
x
p
e
n
s
iv
e
 s
tru

c
tu
ra
l s

o
lu
tio

n
 a
n
d
 th

e
re
 m

a
y
 b
e
 s
o
m
e
 

s
c
o
p
e
 to

 re
d
u
c
e
 a
s
 d
e
s
ig
n
 w

o
rk
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
s
. 

 7
. 

L
e
g
a
l Im

p
lic
a
tio
n
s
 (J

o
h
n
 M

c
Iv
o
r –

 E
x
tn
. 2

9
7
0
3
5
) 

 7
.1
 

T
h
e
 
v
a
rio

u
s
 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 
th
e
 
R
e
p
o
rt 

h
a
v
e
 
v
a
ry
in
g
 
im

p
lic
a
tio

n
s
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
o
p
tio

n
 
c
h
o
s
e
n
. 
A
t 
th
is
 
p
o
in
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 
is
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
o
n
 
th
e
 

im
p
lic
a
tio

n
s
 fo

r th
e
 re

c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 o
p
tio

n
s
 (O

p
tio

n
s
 3
 a
n
d
 4

). O
p
tio

n
s
 1
, 2

 
a
n
d
 5
 p
re
d
o
m
in
a
n
tly

 re
la
te
 to

 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t o

f th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’s

 e
x
is
tin

g
 p
ro
p
e
rty

 
a
s
s
e
ts
 
th
o
u
g
h
 
fu
rth

e
r 
a
d
v
ic
e
 
o
n
 
th
e
s
e
 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
if 

fu
rth

e
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
tio

n
 is

 g
iv
e
n
 to

 th
e
s
e
. 

 7
.2
 

W
ith

 re
g
a
rd
 to

 a
ll th

e
 o
p
tio

n
s
 s
e
t o

u
t in

 th
is
 re

p
o
rt th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il w

ill b
e
 u
n
d
e
r a

 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 d
u
ty
 to

 e
n
s
u
re
 th

e
 h
e
a
lth

 a
n
d
 s
a
fe
ty
 o
f its

 e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 a
n
d
 v
is
ito

rs
 

to
 its

 p
re
m
is
e
s
. A

s
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il is

 th
e
 o
c
c
u
p
ie
r o

f th
e
 b
u
ild

in
g
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il w

ill 
b
e
 
u
n
d
e
r 
a
 
d
u
ty
 
o
f 
c
a
re
 
to
 
a
n
y
 
v
is
ito

rs
 
to
 
th
e
 
b
u
ild

in
g
, 
p
u
rs
u
a
n
t 
to
 
th
e
 

O
c
c
u
p
ie
r’s

 
L
ia
b
ility

 
A
c
ts
 
1
9
5
7
 
a
n
d
 
1
9
8
4
, 
T
h
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il is

 
re
q
u
ire

d
 
to
 
ta
k
e
 

s
u
c
h
 c
a
re
 a
s
 in

 a
ll th

e
 c
irc

u
m
s
ta
n
c
e
s
 o
f th

e
 c
a
s
e
 is

 re
a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 to

 s
e
e
 th

a
t 

th
e
 v
is
ito

r w
ill b

e
 re

a
s
o
n
a
b
ly
 s
a
fe
 in

 u
s
in
g
 th

e
 b
u
ild

in
g
 fo

r th
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 fo

r 
w
h
ic
h
 th

e
y
 a
re
 in

v
ite

d
 o
r p

e
rm

itte
d
 b
y
 th

e
 o
c
c
u
p
ie
r to

 b
e
 th

e
re
. T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
u
s
t a

ls
o
 e
n
s
u
re
 th

a
t a

n
y
 v
is
ito

rs
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 w

ith
 re

a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 p
ro
te
c
tio

n
 

fro
m
 ris

k
s
 o
n
 th

e
 b
u
ild

in
g
. 

 
7
.3
. 

W
ith

 re
g
a
rd
 to

 O
p
tio

n
 3
, th

is
 w

ill re
q
u
ire

 th
e
 a
c
q
u
is
itio

n
 o
f p

ro
p
e
rty

 p
re
s
e
n
tly

 
in
 th

e
 o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 o
f a

 th
ird

 p
a
rty

. T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il w

ill n
e
e
d
 to

 h
a
v
e
 c
e
rta

in
ty
 th

a
t 

th
e
 
te
rm

s
 
o
f 
a
c
q
u
is
itio

n
 
a
re
 
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 
to
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 
w
ill 

b
e
 
in
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 
w
ith

 
th
e
 
fin

a
n
c
ia
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
ts
 
a
n
d
 
b
u
d
g
e
ts
 
o
u
tlin

e
d
 
in
 
th
is
 

re
p
o
rt.  

 

7
.4
 

W
ith

 re
g
a
rd
 to

 O
p
tio

n
 4
, w

h
ils
t th

e
re
 is

 n
o
 e
le
m
e
n
t o

f p
ro
p
e
rty

 a
c
q
u
is
itio

n
, 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il w

ill n
e
e
d
 to

 e
n
s
u
re
 th

a
t it c

o
m
p
lie
s
 w

ith
 th

e
 re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts
 o
f th

e
 

L
o
c
a
l G

o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t A

c
t 1

9
7
2
 in

 re
s
p
e
c
t o

f th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l o

f th
e
 s
ite

 
o
f B

 B
lo
c
k
 fo

llo
w
in
g
 d
e
m
o
litio

n
. 

 7
.5
. 

W
ith

 re
g
a
rd
 to

 b
o
th
 O

p
tio

n
s
 3
 a
n
d
 4
, a

n
y
 c
o
n
tra

c
ts
 re

la
tin

g
 to

 w
o
rk
s
 fo

r th
e
 

re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 

o
f 

p
ro
p
e
rty

 
a
c
q
u
ire

d
 
o
r 

c
u
rre

n
tly

 
w
ith

in
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’s

 
o
w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
w
ill 

n
e
e
d
 
to
 
b
e
 
le
t 
in
 
a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 
w
ith

 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’s

 
C
o
n
tra

c
t 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 
R
u
le
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
ls
o
 
(d
e
p
e
n
d
in
g
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
c
o
n
tra

c
ts
 
in
 

q
u
e
s
tio

n
) 
in
 
a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 
w
ith

 
th
e
 
E
U
 
P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
R
u
le
s
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
P
u
b
lic
 

C
o
n
tra

c
t R

e
g
u
la
tio

n
s
 2
0
0
6
. T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il w

ill b
e
 re

q
u
ire

d
 to

 c
o
m
p
ly
 w

ith
 th

e
 

g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 p
ra
c
tic

e
 s
e
t o

u
t in

 its
 C

o
n
tra

c
t P

ro
c
e
d
u
re
 R

u
le
s
. C

o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

w
ith

 th
e
 E
U
 P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t R

u
le
s
 a
n
d
 th

e
 2
0
0
6
 R

e
g
u
la
tio

n
s
 w

ill b
e
 re

q
u
ire

d
 in

 
th
e
 e
v
e
n
t th

a
t th

e
 a
m
o
u
n
t o

f th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c
o
n
tra

c
t e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 £
3
,9
2
7
,2
6
0
.0
0
. 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

9
 

 8
. 

C
lim
a
te
 C
h
a
n
g
e
 Im
p
lic
a
tio
n
s
 

 

A
ll fiv

e
 o
p
tio

n
s
 fo

r th
e
 re

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t o

f th
e
 C

L
A
B
S
 s
h
o
u
ld
 re

s
u
lt in

 a
 c
a
rb
o
n
 

d
io
x
id
e
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 re

d
u
c
tio

n
 o
f g

re
a
te
r th

a
n
 5
0
%
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w

ith
 th

e
 e
x
is
tin

g
 

C
L
A
B
s
 
p
o
rtfo

lio
. T

h
is
 
is
 in

 lin
e
 
w
ith

 
th
e
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 
ta
rg
e
t 
to
 
re
d
u
c
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
rb
o
n
 d
io
x
id
e
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 to

 5
0
%
 o
f th

e
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 le

v
e
l b

y
 2
0
2
5
/2
6
. In

 a
d
d
itio

n
, 

a
ll 

fiv
e
 
o
f 
th
e
 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
a
re
 
lo
c
a
te
d
 
in
 
th
e
 
C
ity
 
c
e
n
tre

 
s
o
 
th
e
re
 
w
ill 

b
e
 
n
o
 

a
s
s
o
c
ia
te
d
 in

c
re
a
s
e
 in

 c
a
rb
o
n
 d
io
x
id
e
 e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 fro

m
 tra

v
e
l.  

  
M
a
rk
 
J
e
ffc
o
te
, 
S
e
n
io
r 
E
n
v
iro
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
C
o
n
s
u
lta
n
t, 
E
n
v
iro
n
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
, 
E
x
t 

2
9
6
7
6
5
 

9
. 

O
th
e
r Im

p
lic
a
tio
n
s
 

 

O
T
H
E
R
 IM
P
L
IC
A
T
IO
N
S
 

Y
E
S
/

N
O
 

P
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
/R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
s
 

W
ith
in
 S
u
p
p
o
rtin

g
 

in
fo
rm
a
tio
n
 

E
q
u
a
l O

p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 

N
O
 

 

P
o
lic
y
 

N
O
 

 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 a
n
d
 E
n
v
iro

n
m
e
n
ta
l 

Y
E
S
 

3
.1
2
, A

p
p
e
n
d
ix
 I 

C
rim

e
 a
n
d
 D
is
o
rd
e
r 

N
O
 

 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
ig
h
ts
 A
c
t 

N
O
 

 

E
ld
e
rly

/P
e
o
p
le
 o
n
 L
o
w
 In

c
o
m
e
 

N
O
 

 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 P
a
re
n
tin

g
 

N
O
 

 

H
e
a
lth

 In
e
q
u
a
litie

s
 Im

p
a
c
t 

N
O
 

 

 1
0
. 

R
is
k
 A
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t M
a
trix
 

  
O
p
tio

n
 3
 a
n
d
 4
 h
a
v
e
 d
iffe

rin
g
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
, d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 a
n
d
 ris

k
s
.  T

h
e
s
e
 

a
re
 s
u
m
m
a
ris

e
d
 b
e
lo
w
 w
ith

 m
itig

a
tio

n
s
. 

 
 

O
p
tio
n
 3
 

R
is
k
  

L
ik
e
lih
o
o
d
 

L
/M
/H
 

S
e
v
e
rity
 Im
p
a
c
t 

L
/M
/H
 

C
o
n
tro
l A
c
tio
n
s
 

(if n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
/ 

a
p
p
ro
p
ria
te
) 

C
o
s
t c
e
rta
in
ty
  

C
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 s
p
e
c
ific

a
tio

n
 o
f 

w
o
rk
s
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 b
y
 th

ird
 

p
a
rty

, c
o
u
ld
 ris

e
.   

M
  

H
  

N
e
g
o
tia

tio
n
 a
ro
u
n
d
 

p
ric

e
 a
n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ific

a
tio

n
 o
f w

o
rk
s
 

re
q
u
ire

d
.   

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 c
e
rta
in
ty
 

O
w
n
e
r re

q
u
ire

d
 to

 v
a
c
a
te
 

b
e
fo
re
 w
o
rk
s
 s
ta
rt.   

L
  

H
  

T
im

e
ta
b
le
 in

 
a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w

ith
 

s
tru

c
tu
ra
l e

n
g
in
e
e
rs
’ 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
s
 o
v
e
r N

W
C
 

n
e
e
d
s
 to

 b
e
 a
g
re
e
d
. 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
tio
n
  

M
o
v
e
 fro

m
 N
W
C
 c
o
u
ld
 

re
s
u
lt in

 th
a
t s

ite
, a

lo
n
g
 

w
ith

 o
th
e
r b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

v
a
c
a
te
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt o

f th
is
 

H
  

H
  

S
e
e
k
 to

 id
e
n
tify

 a
n
 

a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 v
ia
b
le
 u
s
e
 

fo
r N

W
C
 s
ite

. 
P
o
te
n
tia

l c
a
r p

a
rk
 

u
s
e
.  C

o
s
tin

g
s
 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
0
 

p
ro
je
c
t, re

m
a
in
in
g
 

u
n
u
s
e
d
 to

 th
e
 d
e
trim

e
n
t 

o
f th

e
 s
u
rro

u
n
d
in
g
 a
re
a
 

a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
.   

 

in
c
lu
d
e
 fo

r a
 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t le

g
a
c
y
 

fo
r a

n
 in

te
rim

 p
e
rio

d
 if 

re
q
u
ire

d
. 

D
is
ru
p
tio
n
  

R
e
lo
c
a
te
 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
, a

n
d
 D

a
ta
 

c
e
n
tre

  
N
o
 d
e
c
a
n
t re

q
u
ire

d
. 

L
  

M
  

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 fo

r C
S
C
 

a
n
d
 d
a
ta
 c
e
n
tre

 
re
lo
c
a
tio

n
s
 to

 tie
 in

 
w
ith

 m
a
in
 m

o
v
e
. 

O
p
tio
n
 4
 

R
is
k
 

L
ik
e
lih
o
o
d
 

L
/M
/H
 

S
e
v
e
rity
 Im
p
a
c
t 

L
/M
/H
 

C
o
n
tro
l A
c
tio
n
s
 

(if n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
/ 

a
p
p
ro
p
ria
te
) 

C
o
s
t c
e
rta
in
ty
  

C
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 

s
tru

c
tu
ra
l d

e
s
ig
n
 

p
rin

c
ip
le
s
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 

a
d
d
itio

n
a
l c

o
s
t o

n
c
e
 

d
e
ta
ile

d
 d
e
s
ig
n
s
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
   

 In
c
re
a
s
e
d
 c
o
s
t if fa

ç
a
d
e
 

re
p
la
c
e
d
. 

M
  

       L
  

H
  

       L
  

F
u
ll d

e
s
ig
n
 n
e
e
d
e
d
.  

F
u
rth

e
r w

o
rk
s
 to

 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

o
p
tio

n
 3
 n
o
t p

ro
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
. 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 c
e
rta
in
ty
 

C
o
u
n
c
il o

w
n
 a
n
d
 c
a
n
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t to

 
d
e
c
a
n
t a

rra
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 

b
e
in
g
 p
u
t in

 p
la
c
e
. 

L
  

H
  

D
e
c
a
n
t o

p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 

b
e
in
g
 c
o
lla
te
d
. 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
tio
n
  

R
e
ta
in
s
 N
W
C
 b
a
s
e
, b

u
t 

o
th
e
r s

ite
s
 re

le
a
s
e
s
 –
 e
.g
. 

G
re
y
fria

rs
 

M
  

M
  

N
e
e
d
 to

 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 to

 m
a
rk
e
t 

s
ite

s
 th

a
t a

re
 re

le
a
s
e
d
 

to
 s
e
c
u
re
 th

e
ir e

a
rly

 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t a

n
d
 u
s
e
. 

D
is
ru
p
tio
n
  

A
 B
lo
c
k
 w
ill n

e
e
d
 to

 b
e
 

d
e
c
a
n
te
d
 w

ith
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
tia

l 
d
is
ru
p
tio

n
 to

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
. 

H
  

H
  

D
e
c
a
n
t o

p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 

b
e
in
g
 c
o
lla
te
d
.  

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f m

o
v
e
s
 

to
 b
e
 p
u
t to

g
e
th
e
r to

 
m
a
n
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 m

in
im

is
e
 

d
is
ru
p
tio

n
. 

 1
1
. 

B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 P
a
p
e
rs
 

  
N
o
n
e
 

 1
2
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lta
tio
n
s
 

 
 

 
P
u
b
lic
 S
e
c
to
r P

ro
p
e
rty

 F
o
ru
m
 

 
B
u
ilt A

s
s
e
ts
 G

ro
u
p
 

 1
3
. 

R
e
p
o
rt A

u
th
o
rs
 

 

L
y
n
n
 C
a
v
e
  

 
 

 
 

 
N
e
il G

a
m
b
le
 

D
ire

c
to
r o

f S
tra

te
g
ic
 A
s
s
e
t M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t  

H
e
a
d
 o
f P

ro
p
e
rty

 
D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
1
 

 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 I 

A
s
p
ira
tio
n
s
 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 fo

u
r a

s
p
ira

tio
n
s
 th

a
t h

e
lp
 to

 s
e
t th

e
 v
is
io
n
 fo

r th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il fu

tu
re
 o
ffic

e
s
 a
n
d
 th

e
ir 

im
p
a
c
t o

n
 th

e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio

n
. 

 E
ffe

c
tiv

e
n
e
s
s
 (m

a
k
in
g
 th

e
 m

o
s
t o

f th
e
 p
e
o
p
le
) 

 
- 

im
p
ro
v
in
g
 th

e
 p
ro
d
u
c
tiv

ity
 o
f in

d
iv
id
u
a
ls
 a
n
d
 te

a
m
s
 

- 
In
c
re
a
s
in
g
 th

e
 s
h
a
rin

g
 o
f k

n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 

- 
p
ro
m
o
tin

g
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
in
g
 c
re
a
tiv

ity
 

 
E
ffic

ie
n
c
y
 (m

a
k
in
g
 th

e
 m

o
s
t o

f th
e
 s
p
a
c
e
) 

 
- 

in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 th

e
 c
a
p
a
c
ity

 o
f o

u
r s

p
a
c
e
 

- 
g
iv
in
g
 fle

x
ib
ility

 
- 

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 c
u
ltu

ra
l c

h
a
n
g
e
 in

 th
e
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio

n
 

 
E
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 (m

a
k
in
g
 th

e
 m

o
s
t o

f th
e
 b
ra
n
d
) 

 
- 

s
u
p
p
o
rt d

e
s
ire

d
 c
u
ltu

ra
l a

ttrib
u
te
s
 

- 
m
o
tiv

a
te
 o
u
r p

e
o
p
le
 

- 
c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
te
 o
u
r v

a
lu
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
c
tiv

itie
s
 

- 
a
ttra

c
t a

n
d
 re

ta
in
 th

e
 b
e
s
t p

e
o
p
le
 

 
R
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
n
e
s
s
 (m

e
e
tin

g
 th

e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f c

u
s
to
m
e
rs
) 

 - 
im

p
ro
v
in
g
 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
ility

 fo
r c

u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

- 
p
ro
v
id
e
 a
p
p
ro
p
ria

te
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 fo

r c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 

 W
ith

 th
e
s
e
 fo

u
r 
a
s
p
ira

tio
n
s
 in

 m
in
d
 th

e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il h

a
v
e
 re

v
ie
w
e
d
 o

p
tio

n
s
 fo

r fu
tu
re
 
o
ffic

e
 

p
ro
v
is
io
n
 w
ith

 a
 v
ie
w
 to

 re
le
a
s
in
g
 e
ffic

ie
n
c
ie
s
 fro

m
: 

 
1
) 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

1
) 

F
o
c
u
s
s
in
g
 th

e
 e
s
ta
te
 o
n
 th

e
 m

o
s
t e

ffic
ie
n
t b

u
ild

in
g
s
 

2
) 

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 d
u
p
lic
a
tio

n
 o
f s

u
p
p
o
rt s

p
a
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 th

e
 e
s
ta
te
 

3
) 

A
d
o
p
tio

n
 o
f re

v
is
e
d
 s
p
a
c
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t a

p
p
lic
a
tio

n
 o
f th

e
s
e
 

4
) 

M
o
d
e
rn
is
e
d
 w

o
rk
in
g
 p
ra
c
tic

e
s
 

5
) 

Im
p
ro
v
e
d
 IC

T
 to

o
ls
 to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt fle

x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

6
) 

P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f fle

x
ib
le
 s
p
a
c
e
 

 
K
e
y
 E
n
a
b
le
rs
 a
n
d
 N
o
n
 N
e
g
o
tia
b
le
s
 

 K
e
y
 e
n
a
b
le
rs
 w

h
ic
h
 w
ill n

e
e
d
 to

 b
e
 in

 p
la
c
e
 to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt tra

n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
. 

 F
irs
tly
 th
e
 K
e
y
 E
n
a
b
le
rs
 

 I. 
L
e
a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
itm
e
n
t 

-  
S
tro

n
g
 le

a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 fro

m
 th

e
 to

p
 

-  
L
o
n
g
 te

rm
 c
o
m
m
itm

e
n
t to

 m
o
d
e
rn
is
in
g
 th

e
 w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
 

-  
H
ig
h
 le

v
e
l p

ro
je
c
t s

p
o
n
s
o
r to

 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
 o
r p

ilo
t c

h
a
n
g
e
 

-  
O
rg
a
n
is
a
tio

n
a
l c

o
m
m
itm

e
n
t to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt s

ta
ff a

t lo
c
a
l le

v
e
l th

ro
u
g
h
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
2
 

II. 
C
o
n
tin
u
o
u
s
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

-  
C
o
n
tin

u
e
d
 c
o
m
m
itm

e
n
t fro

m
 w

ith
in
 e
a
c
h
 D

e
p
a
rtm

e
n
t to

 th
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt a

n
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 

fle
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
in
g
 p
ra
c
tic

e
s
. 

-  
P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f c

h
a
n
g
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t w

ith
 a
ll u

s
e
rs
. 

-  
O
p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 fo

r u
s
e
rs
 to

 in
flu

e
n
c
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 lo

c
a
l p

ro
to
c
o
ls
 fo

r ru
n
n
in
g
 

th
e
 s
p
a
c
e
. 

-  
O
p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 
a
n
d
 
in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t 
in
 
c
o
n
tin

u
o
u
s
 
re
v
ie
w
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

p
ro
je
c
t. 

-  
D
e
s
ig
n
 
e
v
o
lu
tio

n
 
a
s
 
p
ro
je
c
t 
ro
lle

d
 
o
u
t 
th
ro
u
g
h
 
c
o
n
tin

u
o
u
s
 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 
o
f 
lis
te
n
in
g
, 

re
v
ie
w
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
. 

 III. 
H
ig
h
 p
e
rfo
rm
in
g
 a
n
d
 in
te
g
ra
te
d
 IC
T
 s
o
lu
tio
n
 

-  
In
te
g
ra
tio

n
 o
f th

e
 IC

T
 s
ta
ff w

ith
in
 th

e
 p
ro
je
c
t te

a
m
 

-  
C
e
n
tra

lis
e
d
 p
rin

tin
g
 fa

c
ilitie

s
 w
ith

in
 flo

o
rs
 

-  
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 tru

s
te
d
 E
D
R
M
S
 s
y
s
te
m
 

-  
A
d
v
a
n
c
e
d
 p
h
o
n
e
 te

c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt m

o
b
ile
 w
o
rk
in
g
 

-  
M
o
v
e
 to

 la
p
to
p
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r m

o
b
ile

 d
e
v
ic
e
s
 w
h
e
re
 re

q
u
ire

d
 

-  
In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t in

 p
ro
je
c
to
rs
 a
n
d
 v
id
e
o
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

 
IV
. 
In
te
g
ra
te
d
 h
u
m
a
n
 re
s
o
u
rc
e
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 

-  
E
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 h
o
m
e
 w

o
rk
in
g
 p
o
lic
y
 

-  
T
ra
in
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt fo

r m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
 in

 th
e
 o
p
e
ra
tio

n
 o
f h

o
m
e
 w

o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

fle
x
ib
le
 w
o
rk
 m

e
th
o
d
s
 

 

It 
is
 
e
x
p
lic
it 

th
a
t 
fo
r 
a
 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
tra

n
s
itio

n
 
a
ll 
th
e
 
k
e
y
 
e
n
a
b
le
rs
 
n
e
e
d
 
to
 
b
e
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
.  

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t w

ill b
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 w

ith
in
 IC

T
, a

n
d
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
s
te
d
 in

 a
s
 p
a
rt o

f th
e
 o
v
e
ra
ll c

o
s
t 

o
f th

e
 v
a
rio

u
s
 s
o
lu
tio

n
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 p
o
lic
y
 a
lig

n
m
e
n
t n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 in

 H
R
. 

 
K
e
y
 N
o
n
 N
e
g
o
tia
b
le
s
 

 

In
 
a
d
d
itio

n
 
to
 
th
e
 
e
n
a
b
le
rs
 
th
e
re
 
a
re
 
a
 
fe
w
 
k
e
y
 
p
o
lic
ie
s
 
/ 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
, 
in
 
te
rm

s
 
o
f 
o
ffic

e
 

la
y
o
u
ts
 a
n
d
 a
llo

c
a
tio

n
 o
f s

p
a
c
e
, th

a
t n

e
e
d
 to

 b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
.  T

h
e
s
e
 a
re
 fu

n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l to

 th
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 o
f th

e
 p
ro
je
c
t a

n
d
, o

n
c
e
 a
g
re
e
d
, m

u
s
t b

e
 re

g
a
rd
e
d
 a
s
 n
o
n
 n
e
g
o
tia

b
le
. 

 F
o
r th

e
 p
ro
je
c
t to

 s
u
c
c
e
e
d
 it is

 e
s
s
e
n
tia

l th
a
t, o

n
c
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
, th

e
s
e
 a
re
 a
p
p
lie

d
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 o

rg
a
n
is
a
tio

n
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
tly

 a
n
d
 a

re
 a

d
h
e
re
d
 to

.  T
h
is
 re

q
u
ire

s
 s
tro

n
g
 le

a
d
e
rs
h
ip
 fro

m
 

s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
rs
, 
a
 
w
illin

g
n
e
s
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
a
d
v
o
c
a
te
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
b
e
n
e
fits

 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
a
n
d
, 
m
o
s
t 

im
p
o
rta

n
tly

, to
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 to

 le
a
d
 b
y
 e
x
a
m
p
le
.  T

h
e
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 a
re
 lis

te
d
 b
e
lo
w
, a

n
d
 re

p
re
s
e
n
t 

v
e
ry
 fu

n
d
a
m
e
n
ta
l c

h
a
n
g
e
. 

 
I. 

W
o
rk
in
g
 p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 

 
W
o
rk
in
g
 
p
ro
to
c
o
ls
 
w
ill 

b
e
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 
in
 
e
a
c
h
 
s
e
ttin

g
 
a
n
d
 
m
u
s
t 
b
e
 
a
d
h
e
re
d
 
to
.  

T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill in
c
lu
d
e
, a

s
 a
p
p
ro
p
ria

te
:- 

• 
c
le
a
r d

e
s
k
 p
o
lic
ie
s
 

• 
d
is
c
ip
lin
e
 in

 b
o
o
k
in
g
 s
h
a
re
d
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 

 II. 
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l o
ffic
e
s
 

 
In
d
iv
id
u
a
l o

ffic
e
s
 w
ill n

o
t b

e
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
. 

 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
3
 

III. 
S
p
a
c
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 &
 F
u
rn
itu
re
 

W
h
ils
t s

ta
ff w

ill h
a
v
e
 s
ig
n
ific

a
n
t c

h
o
ic
e
 o
v
e
r th

e
 w

o
rk
in
g
 e
n
v
iro

n
m
e
n
t, th

e
re
 w

ill b
e
 

p
re
d
e
te
rm

in
e
d
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
: 

• 
S
p
a
c
e
 a
llo

c
a
tio

n
s
 

• 
A
v
a
ila

b
le
 fu

rn
itu

re
 

• 
F
u
rn
itu

re
 la

y
o
u
t 

• 
F
ilin

g
 s
p
a
c
e
 

 IV
. 

T
e
a
m
 W
o
rk
s
ty
le
s
 

T
h
e
 a
m
o
u
n
t o

f o
ffic

e
 s
p
a
c
e
 re

q
u
ire

d
 w
ill b

e
 im

p
a
c
te
d
 b
y
 tw

o
 m

a
in
 fa

c
to
rs
: 

• 
T
h
e
 p
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f s

h
a
re
d
 w

o
rk
s
p
a
c
e
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il w

is
h
 to

 a
d
o
p
t w

ith
in
 th

e
 n
e
w
 

w
o
rk
p
la
c
e
, 

• 
T
h
e
 p
o
rtfo

lio
 o
f b

u
ild
in
g
s
 s
e
le
c
te
d
. 

 S
p
a
c
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 

 T
h
e
 
a
d
o
p
te
d
 
s
p
a
c
e
 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 
fo
r 
s
p
a
c
e
 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 
m
a
p
p
in
g
 
h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 
b
a
s
e
d
 
a
ro
u
n
d
 
a
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 m

o
d
e
l o

f a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 7
 s
q
 m

s
 w

ith
in
 o
ffic

e
 a
re
a
s
 fo

r e
a
c
h
 w

o
rk
s
ta
tio

n
 a
n
d
 its

 
c
o
n
trib

u
tio

n
 to

w
a
rd
s
 c
irc

u
la
tio

n
 a
re
a
s
, a

n
c
illa

ry
 s
u
p
p
o
rt s

p
a
c
e
s
 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 b
re
a
k
 o
u
t a

re
a
s
, 

m
e
e
tin

g
 ro

o
m
s
 a
n
d
 p
o
d
 s
p
a
c
e
s
 w

ith
 a
 fu

rth
e
r 3

 s
q
 m

s
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
trib

u
tio

n
s
 to

 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 in

c
lu
d
in
g
 re

c
e
p
tio

n
s
, c

o
rp
o
ra
te
 m

e
e
tin

g
 ro

o
m
s
 a
n
d
 tra

in
in
g
, c

o
m
m
o
n
 a
re
a
s
, c

a
fé
 

e
tc
.  T

o
 p
u
t th

is
 in

 c
o
n
te
x
t, th

is
 w

ill a
llo
w
 fo

r a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 1
2
0
 s
ta
ff o

n
 a
 ty

p
ic
a
l flo

o
r o

f 
N
W
C
 w
h
ic
h
 is

 in
 a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
ith

 m
a
x
im

u
m
 d
e
n
s
itie

s
 fo

r fire
 e
s
c
a
p
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
. 

 In
 2
0
0
8
 s
p
a
c
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lta

n
ts
 c
a
rrie

d
 o
u
t a

 s
tu
d
y
 o
f th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il u

s
e
 o
f o

ffic
e
s
 a
n
d
 id

e
n
tifie

d
 

th
a
t a

s
 a
n
 o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio

n
 a
 h
ig
h
e
r p

e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 o
f o

u
r s

ta
ff w

e
re
 d
e
s
k
 b
o
u
n
d
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 to

 
o
th
e
r 
s
im

ila
r 
o
rg
a
n
is
a
tio

n
 
w
ith

 
7
3
%
 
fa
llin

g
 
w
ith

in
 
th
e
 
re
s
id
e
n
t 
p
o
p
u
la
tio

n
 
g
ro
u
p
. 
 
T
h
e
 

re
m
a
in
in
g
 2
7
%
 o
f s

ta
ff w

e
re
 m

u
c
h
 m

o
re
 m

o
b
ile
 a
n
d
 o
ffe

r g
re
a
te
r o

p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 fo

r s
h
a
rin

g
 

a
rra

n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 

 B
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 a
ll th

e
s
e
 fa

c
to
rs
 th

e
 fo

llo
w
in
g
 ta

b
le
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
n
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f re

q
u
ire

d
 o
ffic

e
 flo

o
r 

p
la
te
 
b
y
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
rin

g
 
a
 
ra
n
g
e
 
o
f 
re
d
u
c
tio

n
s
 
in
 
s
ta
ff 

to
 
b
e
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 
fo
r 
a
n
d
 
a
 
ra
tio

 
o
f 

w
o
rk
s
ta
tio

n
s
 
re
q
u
ire

d
 
to
 
h
o
u
s
e
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
 
n
u
m
b
e
r, 

a
ll 

o
n
 
th
e
 
a
s
s
u
m
p
tio

n
 
o
f 
th
e
 
s
p
a
c
e
 

s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 re

fe
rre

d
 to

 a
b
o
v
e
 b
e
in
g
 im

p
le
m
e
n
te
d
. 

 

 
%
 re

d
u
c
tio

n
 in

 c
ity

 c
e
n
tre

 b
a
s
e
d
 o
ffic

e
 s
ta
ff 

 
0
%
 

1
5
%
 

2
0
%
 

2
5
%
 

3
0
%
 

S
ta
ff N

u
m
b
e
r 

3
,1
0
2
 

2
,6
3
7
 

2
,4
8
2
 

2
,3
2
7
 

2
,1
7
1
 

W
o
rk
s
ta
tio

n
s
 

2
,6
0
1
 

2
,2
1
1
 

2
,0
8
1
 

1
,9
5
1
 

1
,8
2
0
 

A
re
a
 re

q
u
ire

d
 

(n
e
t in

te
rn
a
l 

a
re
a
/s
q
 m

s
) 

 
2
6
,0
1
3
 

 
2
2
,1
1
2
 

 
2
0
,8
1
2
 

 
1
9
,5
0
9
 

 
1
8
,2
0
0
 

 F
o
r th

e
 o

p
tio

n
s
 a

p
p
ra
is
a
l th

e
 2

5
%
 s
ta
ff re

d
u
c
tio

n
 s
c
e
n
a
rio

 h
a
s
 
b
e
e
n
 a

d
o
p
te
d
 re

q
u
irin

g
 

fu
tu
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 1

9
,5
0
9
 s
q
 m

s
 n
e
t in

te
rn
a
l a

re
a
 o
f a

c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
.  T

h
is
 g
iv
e
s
 a
 5
0
%
 

re
d
u
c
tio

n
 
o
f 
flo

o
r 
p
la
te
 
a
n
d
 
th
is
 
c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
re
d
u
c
e
d
 
b
y
 
a
 
fu
rth

e
r 
3
,2
2
0
 
s
q
 
m
s
 
s
h
o
u
ld
 

w
o
rk
s
ta
tio

n
 s
h
a
rin

g
 a
t a

 ra
tio

 o
f 7

:1
0
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 if im

p
ro
v
e
d
 IC

T
 to

o
ls
 e
n
a
b
le
 g
re
a
te
r 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f s

ta
ff to

 w
o
rk
 in

 a
 m

o
re
 m

o
b
ile

 fa
s
h
io
n
. 

 P
a
rtn
e
rs
 

 

T
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t h

a
s
 e
x
p
lo
re
d
 p
a
rtn

e
r re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts
 to

 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 jo

in
t w

o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 o
c
c
u
p
a
tio

n
 

o
p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 th

ro
u
g
h
 th

e
 P

u
b
lic
 S

e
c
to
r P

ro
p
e
rty

 F
o
ru
m
 a
n
d
 th

e
 T

o
ta
l A

s
s
e
t P

a
th
fin

d
e
r.  



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
4
 

T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 a
ls
o
 b
e
e
n
 a
 m

e
e
tin

g
 w

ith
 o
ffic

e
rs
 a
t G

O
E
M
 re

p
re
s
e
n
tin

g
 th

e
 c
iv
il e

s
ta
te
 w
h
o
 a
re
 

a
t 
a
n
 
e
a
rly

 
s
ta
g
e
 
o
f 
id
e
n
tify

in
g
 
th
e
ir 

fu
tu
re
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
in
 
th
e
 
c
ity

 
b
u
t 
a
re
 
k
e
e
n
 
to
 
s
h
a
re
 

in
fo
rm

a
tio

n
 to

 id
e
n
tify

 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
.  A

 s
im

ila
r w

o
rk
s
tre

a
m
 is

 in
 p
la
c
e
 lo

o
k
in
g
 a
t tra

in
in
g
 

fa
c
ilitie

s
 
a
c
ro
s
s
 
th
e
 
c
ity
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
u
n
ty
 
a
n
d
 
it 

is
 
a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 
th
a
t 
th
e
 
D
a
ta
 
C
e
n
tre

 
c
u
rre

n
tly
 

lo
c
a
te
d
 o
n
 B

3
 w

ill n
o
t b

e
 lo

c
a
te
d
 w

ith
in
 th

e
 m

a
in
 o
ffic

e
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
.  T

h
e
 P

u
b
lic
 S

e
c
to
r IT

 
g
ro
u
p
 is

 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 a
 w
o
rk
s
tre

a
m
 lo

o
k
in
g
 a
t th

e
 p
o
te
n
tia

l fo
r a

 jo
in
t fa

c
ility

. 
 T
h
e
 h
e
a
lth

 s
e
c
to
r a

p
p
e
a
rs
 to

 o
ffe

r th
e
 m

o
s
t im

m
e
d
ia
te
 p
o
te
n
tia

l fo
r jo

in
t w

o
rk
in
g
 w

ith
 th

e
 

P
C
T
 
a
n
d
 
h
o
s
p
ita

ls
 
in
 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 
re
g
a
rd
in
g
 
th
e
ir 

fu
tu
re
 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 
fo
r 
o
ffic

e
s
. 
 
U
H
L
 
a
re
 

lo
o
k
in
g
 to

 m
o
v
e
 s
o
m
e
 n
o
n
-c
lin

ic
a
l s

ta
ff o

ff th
e
ir 3

 p
rim

a
ry
 s
ite

s
 to

 e
n
a
b
le
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 a
n
d
 

c
o
-lo

c
a
tio

n
 o
f c

lin
ic
a
l a

c
tiv

itie
s
 in

 th
e
s
e
 lo

c
a
tio

n
s
. F

u
rth

e
r m

e
e
tin

g
s
 a
re
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 to

 lo
o
k
 

a
t w

h
a
t c

o
u
ld
 b
e
 m

o
v
e
d
.  H

o
p
e
fu
lly
 th

is
 w

ill e
n
a
b
le
 a
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t o

f th
e
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 o
f s

ta
ff 

in
v
o
lv
e
d
. 
 
O
u
r 
s
tra

te
g
y
 
th
e
re
fo
re
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
to
 
b
e
 
fle

x
ib
le
 
e
n
o
u
g
h
 
to
 
b
e
 
a
b
le
 
to
 
a
d
a
p
t 
to
 

o
p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
 w
ith

 p
a
rtn

e
rs
. 

 S
e
rv
ic
e
 tra

n
s
fo
rm
a
tio
n
 

 
T
h
e
 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 
p
ro
je
c
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
s
 
a
 
re
d
e
s
ig
n
 
o
f 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
b
e
in
g
 
re
lia

n
t 
u
p
o
n
 
th
e
 

in
tro

d
u
c
tio

n
 o
f n

e
w
 w

a
y
s
 o
f w

o
rk
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rte

d
 b
y
 IT

 in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t th

e
re
b
y
 im

p
a
c
tin

g
 o
n
 th

e
 

p
ro
p
e
rty

 
a
s
s
e
ts
 
re
q
u
ire

d
 
to
 
s
u
p
p
o
rt 

it. 
A
g
ile
 
w
o
rk
in
g
 
is
 
a
 
p
a
rtn

e
rs
h
ip
 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 
p
e
o
p
le
, 

p
la
c
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
te
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
. 
It 

is
 
a
b
o
u
t 
d
e
liv
e
rin

g
 
th
e
 
b
e
s
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 
to
 
o
u
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
rs
 
a
n
d
 

c
re
a
tin

g
 b
e
tte

r e
n
v
iro

n
m
e
n
ts
 fo

r o
u
r e

m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 th

a
t a

re
 s
u
ita

b
le
 fo

r th
e
 d
iffe

re
n
t ty

p
e
s
 o
f 

a
c
tiv

itie
s
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
 b
y
 th

e
m
, th

e
re
b
y
 h
e
lp
in
g
 th

e
m
 to

 w
o
rk
 in

 m
o
re
 c
re
a
tiv

e
 w

a
y
s
, w

h
ils
t 

re
d
u
c
in
g
 th

e
 o
v
e
ra
ll c

o
s
t o

f p
ro
p
e
rty

 to
 th

e
 a
u
th
o
rity

. In
 a
d
d
itio

n
 th

e
 p
ro
je
c
t w

ill fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 

th
e
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r a

n
d
 h
o
w
 th

e
y
 a
re
 b
e
s
t s

e
rv
e
d
 in

 c
o
m
m
u
n
itie

s
 a
n
d
 b
y
 d
o
in
g
 s
o
 w

ill d
e
fin

e
 th

e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ff w

h
o
 d
e
liv
e
r fro

m
 a
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

 b
a
s
e
 w

ith
 d
ire

c
t im

p
a
c
t o

n
 th

e
 n
u
m
b
e
r o

f 
s
ta
ff w

h
o
 w

ill re
m
a
in
 c
e
n
tra

lly
 b
a
s
e
d
.  

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
tio
n
 

 
A
 
fu
rth

e
r 
c
ritic

a
l 
fa
c
to
r 
in
 
a
s
s
e
s
s
in
g
 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
is
 
th
e
 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
tio

n
 
im

p
a
c
t 
a
c
c
ru
in
g
 
fro

m
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
.  N

W
C
 c
u
rre

n
tly
 h
o
u
s
e
s
 a
 la

rg
e
 w

o
rk
fo
rc
e
 o
n
 th

e
 s
o
u
th
e
rn
 p
e
rip

h
e
ry
 o
f th

e
 c
ity
’s
 

re
ta
il c

e
n
tre

 a
n
d
 is

 a
n
 im

p
o
rta

n
t a

n
c
h
o
r fo

r th
is
 e
n
d
 o
f th

e
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

.  A
n
y
 m

o
v
e
 o
f s

ta
ff 

fro
m
 th

is
 lo

c
a
tio

n
, w

h
e
th
e
r te

m
p
o
ra
ry
 d
e
c
a
n
t o

r p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t, w

ill h
a
v
e
 a
 d
e
trim

e
n
ta
l im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 th

is
 p
a
rt o

f th
e
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

 w
h
ic
h
 is

 to
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
a
re
d
 w

ith
 th

e
 b
e
n
e
fits

 a
c
c
ru
in
g
 to

 th
e
 

lo
c
a
tio

n
 th

e
 s
ta
ff m

o
v
e
 to

.  It is
 im

p
o
rta

n
t th

e
re
fo
re
 if th

e
 p
re
fe
rre

d
 o
p
tio

n
s
 in

v
o
lv
e
s
 th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il v

a
c
a
tin

g
 th

e
 N

W
C
 s
ite

 th
a
t a

lo
n
g
 s
id
e
 d

e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t o

f th
e
 p

re
fe
rre

d
 o

p
tio

n
 th

e
 

fu
tu
re
 u

s
e
 o

f th
e
 N

W
C
 s
ite

 is
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 
a
n
d
 o

p
tio

n
s
 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 th

e
 m

a
rk
e
t 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
tia

l a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 u
s
e
s
 in

 o
rd
e
r to

 m
itig

a
te
 to

 a
s
 g
re
a
t a

n
 e
x
te
n
t 

a
s
 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 
th
e
 
n
e
g
a
tiv

e
 
e
ffe

c
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il’s

 
m
o
v
e
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
a
re
a
. 
 
C
u
rre

n
t 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 

a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 u
s
e
s
 in

c
lu
d
e
 c
a
r p

a
rk
in
g
 o
r s

tu
d
e
n
t a

c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
.  T

h
e
 c
o
s
tin

g
s
 a
ls
o
 in

c
lu
d
e
 

a
 s
u
m
 fo

r a
 s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t le

g
a
c
y
 to

 fu
n
d
 a
n
 in

te
rim

 u
s
e
 o
n
 th

e
 N

W
C
 s
ite

 w
e
re
 

th
e
re
 to

 b
e
 a
 tim

e
 la

g
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 C

o
u
n
c
il re

lo
c
a
tio

n
 a
n
d
 a
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t u

s
e
.  T

h
e
re
 is

 a
ls
o
 

p
o
te
n
tia

l p
o
s
itiv

e
 re

g
e
n
e
ra
tio

n
 w

ith
in
 n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
s
 w

ith
 a
 m

o
v
e
 o
f s

ta
ff a

n
d
 in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
 c
o
m
m
u
n
itie

s
. 

 
E
n
v
iro
n
m
e
n
ta
l s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ility

 
 

A
n
 im

p
o
rta

n
t fa

c
to
r in

 a
p
p
ra
is
in
g
 o
p
tio

n
s
 is

 th
e
 c
a
rb
o
n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
 a
n
d
 th

e
 a
b
ility

 o
f th

e
 b
u
ilt 

s
o
lu
tio

n
s
 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
e
n
e
rg
y
 
e
ffic

ie
n
c
y
 
a
n
d
 
b
e
 
a
n
 
e
x
e
m
p
la
r 
o
f 
b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
tic

e
. 
 
N
W
C
 
is
 

c
u
rre

n
tly

 
v
e
ry
 
in
e
ffic

ie
n
t 
in
 
te
rm

s
 
o
f 
e
n
e
rg
y
 
u
s
e
 
a
n
d
 
s
a
v
in
g
s
 
o
f 
o
v
e
r 
5
0
%
 
in
 
c
a
rb
o
n
 

e
m
is
s
io
n
s
 
is
 
a
 
m
in
im

u
m
 
re
q
u
ire

m
e
n
t 
w
ith

 
n
e
w
 
b
u
ild

 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
s
triv

in
g
 
fo
r 

B
R
E
E
A
M
 

‘e
x
c
e
lle

n
t’ a

n
d
 re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t fo

r ‘v
e
ry
 g
o
o
d
’. 

 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
5
 

A
s
 m

e
n
tio

n
e
d
 a
b
o
v
e
, if te

m
p
o
ra
rily

 v
a
c
a
n
t, th

e
 N

e
w
 W

a
lk
 C

e
n
tre

 s
ite

 w
o
u
ld
 p
ro
v
id
e
 th

e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il w

ith
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity
 to

 im
p
le
m
e
n
t s

o
m
e
 fo

rm
 o
f te

m
p
o
ra
ry
 u
s
e
 o
f th

e
 s
ite

 s
u
c
h
 a
s
 

a
n
 u

rb
a
n
 fo

o
d
 g

ro
w
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t a

n
d
 th

e
re
b
y
 fu

rth
e
r d

e
m
o
n
s
tra

te
 its

 c
o
m
m
itm

e
n
t to

 lo
c
a
l 

s
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t. 

 
T
h
e
 

h
ig
h
ly
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 

U
rb
a
n
 

F
a
rm

in
g
 

P
ro
je
c
t 

in
 

M
id
d
le
s
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 is

 a
n
 e
x
a
m
p
le
 o
f w

h
a
t c

a
n
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
.  M

id
d
le
s
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il tu

rn
e
d
 

o
v
e
r la

n
d
 to

 a
n
 in

itia
l e

ig
h
t m

o
n
th
 fo

o
d
 g
ro
w
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t th

a
t c

u
lm

in
a
te
d
 in

 8
,0
0
0
 p
e
o
p
le
 

s
h
a
rin

g
 
a
 
m
e
a
l 
m
a
d
e
 
fro

m
 
th
e
 
fo
o
d
 
th
a
t 
h
a
d
 
b
e
e
n
 
g
ro
w
n
. 
 
T
h
e
 
p
a
rtn

e
rs
h
ip
 
p
ro
je
c
t 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 v
e
ry
 h
ig
h
 le

v
e
ls
 o
f c

o
m
m
u
n
ity
 p
a
rtic

ip
a
tio

n
, e

d
u
c
a
te
d
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
b
o
u
t d

ie
t a

n
d
 fo

o
d
 

g
ro
w
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
w
a
s
 
a
 
p
ra
c
tic

a
l 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 
to
 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 
fo
o
d
 
p
ric

e
s
 
a
n
d
 
fo
o
d
 
m
ile
s
. 
 
T
h
e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 
o
f 
th
e
 
M
id
d
le
s
b
o
ro
u
g
h
 
p
ro
je
c
t 
c
a
n
 
b
e
 
re
p
lic
a
te
d
 
in
 
L
e
ic
e
s
te
r 
w
ith

 
a
 
s
u
ita

b
le
 

b
u
d
g
e
t a

n
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f £

3
0
0
,0
0
0
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 in

c
lu
d
e
d
 w
ith

in
 th

e
 d
e
m
o
litio

n
 c
o
s
tin

g
s
. 

 B
a
c
k
g
ro
u
n
d
 

 In
 s
u
p
p
o
rt o

f th
e
 tra

n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a
g
e
n
d
a
, th

e
 o
ffic

e
 s
tra

te
g
y
 c
a
n
 re

v
ie
w
 o
u
r b

u
ilt a

s
s
e
ts
 to

 
e
n
s
u
re
 
a
 
c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 
c
a
rb
o
n
 
e
ffic

ie
n
t 
p
o
rtfo

lio
, 
d
riv

e
 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 
in
 
o
u
r 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 
a
s
s
e
ts
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 m

o
d
e
rn
 w

a
y
s
 o
f w

o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r o

rie
n
ta
te
d
 s
o
lu
tio

n
.  A

p
p
e
n
d
ix
 I 

o
u
tlin

e
s
 
a
s
p
ira

tio
n
s
, 
k
e
y
 
e
n
a
b
le
rs
 
a
n
d
 
n
o
n
 
n
e
g
o
tia

b
le
s
 
th
a
t 
w
ill 

n
e
e
d
 
to
 
b
e
 
in
 
p
la
c
e
 
to
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 th

is
 tra

n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a
n
d
 in

c
lu
d
e
s
 p
a
ra
g
ra
p
h
s
 o
n
 w

o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
 w

ith
 p
a
rtn

e
rs
 to

 
lo
o
k
 fo

r s
h
a
rin

g
 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
itie

s
, h

o
w
 th

e
 o
ffic

e
 s
tra

te
g
y
 c
a
n
 p
ro
m
o
te
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 tra

n
s
fo
rm

a
tio

n
, 

is
s
u
e
s
 a
ro
u
n
d
 re

g
e
n
e
ra
tio

n
 a
n
d
 e
n
v
iro

n
m
e
n
ta
l s

u
s
ta
in
a
b
ility

. 
 T
o
 d
a
te
 th

e
 o
ffic

e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 th

e
 m

o
v
e
 o
f M

e
m
b
e
rs
 to

 th
e
 T
o
w
n
 H

a
ll, th

e
 

re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o

f S
o
v
e
re
ig
n
 H

o
u
s
e
, 1

6
 N

e
w
 W

a
lk
, P

h
o
e
n
ix
 H

o
u
s
e
, p

a
rts

 o
f G

re
y
fria

rs
 a
n
d
 

F
lo
o
rs
 B

G
, B

1
, B

7
, A

1
 a
n
d
 A

2
 in

 N
W
C
.  In

 a
d
d
itio

n
 fittin

g
 o
u
t w

o
rk
s
 w

e
re
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
 a
t 

W
e
llin

g
to
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 a

 n
e
w
 p

u
b
lic
 re

c
e
p
tio

n
 
a
re
a
 
p
ro
v
id
e
d
 th

e
re
 a

n
d
 
a
t A

 B
lo
c
k
 a

n
d
 

P
h
o
e
n
ix
 
H
o
u
s
e
. 
 
O
th
e
r 
w
o
rk
s
 
u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 
h
a
v
e
 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 
u
rg
e
n
t 
a
c
tio

n
s
 
to
 

s
a
fe
g
u
a
rd
 th

e
 o
p
e
ra
tio

n
 o
f th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’s

 D
a
ta
 C

e
n
tre

 a
n
d
 th

e
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
 o
f th

e
 fo

rm
e
r P

o
s
t 

O
ffic

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 o

n
 B

is
h
o
p
 S

tre
e
t 
w
ith

 a
 v
ie
w
 to

 c
o
n
v
e
rs
io
n
 to

 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
 n

e
w
 C

u
s
to
m
e
r 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 C

e
n
tre

 fo
r th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.  C

o
n
s
u
lta

n
ts
 D

E
G
W
 w

e
re
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 to

 lo
o
k
 a

t th
e
 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 s
id
e
 o
f o

u
r a

c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 m

o
d
e
lle

d
 w

o
rk
 s
ty
le
s
 fo

r C
o
u
n
c
il s

ta
ff.  T

o
 

d
a
te
 £
1
1
,0
2
8
,8
0
7
 o
f th

e
 b
u
d
g
e
t h

a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
p
e
n
t fro

m
 a
n
 a
llo

c
a
tio

n
 o
f £

2
9
,6
7
6
,0
0
0
.  T

h
e
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 e
n
a
b
le
d
 th

e
 re

le
a
s
e
 o
f M

a
n
s
io
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 W

e
lfo

rd
 H

o
u
s
e
 fro

m
 th

e
 o
ffic

e
 

p
o
rtfo

lio
, g

iv
in
g
 a
n
 a
n
n
u
a
l re

v
e
n
u
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 o
f £

3
6
5
,0
0
0
. 

 A
t its

 m
e
e
tin

g
 o

n
 1

2
th J

u
ly
 2

0
1
0
 C

a
b
in
e
t c

o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a

 re
p
o
rt o

n
 th

e
 s
tru

c
tu
re
 o

f N
W
C
 

w
h
ic
h
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 th

a
t th

e
 s
tru

c
tu
re
 fa

lls
 s
h
o
rt o

f th
e
 re

c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
tio

n
 in

 c
u
rre

n
t c

o
d
e
s
 in

 
te
rm

s
 o
f th

e
 c
u
rre

n
t lo

a
d
in
g
.  T

h
e
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 th

e
re
fo
re
 n
e
e
d
 s
tru

c
tu
ra
l s

tre
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 to

 ta
k
e
 

fu
ll o

ffic
e
 lo

a
d
in
g
s
, a

lth
o
u
g
h
 it is

 th
e
 e
n
g
in
e
e
r’s

 o
p
in
io
n
 th

a
t th

e
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
ffic

ie
n
t 

re
d
u
n
d
a
n
t s

tre
n
g
th
 to

 c
o
n
tin

u
e
 to

 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 s
a
fe
ly
 w

h
ile

 s
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 w

o
rk
s
 a
re
 d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 

a
n
d
 
p
ro
c
u
re
d
, 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 
th
e
 
rig

o
ro
u
s
 
o
n
g
o
in
g
 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
lo
a
d
s
 
w
ith

in
 
th
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 
a
n
d
 
th
e
 
‘n
o
 
im

p
o
s
e
d
 
lo
a
d
 
z
o
n
e
s
’ 
id
e
n
tifie

d
. 
 
W
o
rk
s
 
a
re
 
to
 
b
e
 
d
e
s
ig
n
e
d
 
a
n
d
 

p
ro
c
u
re
d
 b
y
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
1
. 

 C
a
b
in
e
t n

o
te
d
 th

e
s
e
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 th

e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
m
e
n
t o

f a
n
 o
p
tio

n
s
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l p

ro
je
c
t in

 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 to

 th
e
m
 to

 c
o
n
s
id
e
r th

e
 o
p
tio

n
s
 a
v
a
ila

b
le
 to

 th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il in

 fu
tu
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 

o
ffic

e
s
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’s

 c
e
n
tra

l o
ffic

e
 e
s
ta
te
 is

 c
u
rre

n
tly
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 fro

m
 th

e
 fo

llo
w
in
g
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
:- 

 N
e
w
 W

a
lk
 C
e
n
tre

 
 

 
 

E
a
g
le
 H
o
u
s
e
 

T
o
w
n
 H

a
ll 

 
 

 
 

Y
o
rk
 H
o
u
s
e
 

S
o
v
e
re
ig
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 

 
 

 
1
0
 Y
o
rk
 R
o
a
d
 

P
h
o
e
n
ix
 H

o
u
s
e
 

 
 

 
C
o
lle

g
ia
te
 H

o
u
s
e
 

1
6
 N

e
w
 W

a
lk
  

 
 

 
M
a
rlb

o
ro
u
g
h
 H

o
u
s
e
 

1
/5
 G

re
y
fria

rs
 

 
 

 
W
e
llin

g
to
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 

G
re
y
fria

rs
 re

a
r b

u
ild

in
g
s
 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
6
 

 
T
h
is
 
is
 
a
 
m
ix
e
d
 
p
o
rtfo

lio
 
in
 
te
rm

s
 
o
f 
b
u
ild

in
g
 
ty
p
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
a
g
e
s
, 
te
n
u
re
 
(fre

e
h
o
ld
 
a
n
d
 

le
a
s
e
h
o
ld
) a

n
d
 s
u
ita

b
ility

 to
 m

e
e
t th

e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f m

o
d
e
rn
 o
ffic

e
 u
s
e
.  T

h
e
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 c
u
rre

n
tly

 
h
o
u
s
e
 a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 3
,1
0
0
 s
ta
ff a

n
d
 th

e
 d
iv
e
rs
ity

 o
f th

e
 p
o
rtfo

lio
 re

s
u
lts

 in
 in

e
ffic

ie
n
c
ie
s
 in

 
te
rm

s
 
o
f 
s
p
a
c
e
 
u
s
a
g
e
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
rb
o
n
 
fo
o
tp
rin

t. 
F
ro
m
 
th
e
 
e
x
is
tin

g
 
p
o
rtfo

lio
 
it 

is
 
fe
lt 

th
a
t 

S
o
v
e
re
ig
n
 H

o
u
s
e
, 1

6
 N

e
w
 W

a
lk
 a
n
d
 P

h
o
e
n
ix
 H

o
u
s
e
 w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 th

e
 m

o
s
t a

d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
o
u
s
 to

 
re
ta
in
 
a
s
 
th
e
y
 
a
re
 
fre

e
h
o
ld
 
o
w
n
e
d
, 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
n
e
fite

d
 
fro

m
 
s
o
m
e
 
re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 
a
re
 

s
u
ita

b
le
 fo

r m
o
d
e
rn
 w

o
rk
in
g
. 

 T
h
e
re
 a
re
 s
ix
 fa

c
to
rs
 w

h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 n
o
w
 c
o
m
e
 to

g
e
th
e
r to

 p
ro
v
id
e
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’s

 a
n
tic

ip
a
te
d
 

s
p
a
c
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
e
t in

to
 th

e
 fu

tu
re
, w

h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 to

 ju
d
g
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 

o
p
tio

n
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t. 

  
1
) 

S
p
a
c
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 w
o
rk
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
 in

 2
0
0
8
 a
n
d
 n
o
w
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 

2
) 

Im
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
tia

l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
re
d
u
c
tio

n
s
 
w
h
ic
h
 
w
ill 

re
d
u
c
e
 
s
ta
ff 

n
u
m
b
e
rs
 in

to
 th

e
 fu

tu
re
 

3
) 

Im
p
a
c
t o

f n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 w

o
rk
in
g
 p
ro
je
c
t o

n
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

 b
a
s
e
d
 s
ta
ff n

u
m
b
e
rs
 

 
4
) 

R
e
q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts
 o
f p

a
rtn

e
rs
 

 
5
) 

S
p
a
c
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 

6
) 

C
u
s
to
m
e
r a

c
c
e
s
s
 re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
ts
 

 
T
h
is
 a
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 in

c
lu
d
e
s
 d
e
ta
ils
 o
f th

e
 s
p
a
c
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r a

s
s
u
m
p
tio

n
 a
d
o
p
te
d
 in

 
d
e
te
rm

in
in
g
 a
 fu

tu
re
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 1

9
,5
0
9
 s
q
 m

s
 n
e
t in

te
rn
a
l a

re
a
 o
f a

c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
tio

n
 u
p
o
n
 

w
h
ic
h
 
a
ll 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
b
a
s
e
d
. 
 
T
h
is
 
g
iv
e
s
 
a
 
5
0
%
 
re
d
u
c
tio

n
 
o
n
 
th
e
 
c
u
rre

n
t 
a
re
a
 

o
c
c
u
p
ie
d
.  T

h
e
 s
p
a
c
e
 w

ill h
o
u
s
e
 a
 c
ity

 c
e
n
tre

 s
ta
ff 2

5
%
 re

d
u
c
e
d
 o
n
 e
x
is
tin

g
 n
u
m
b
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

a
 
fu
rth

e
r 
3
,2
2
0
 
s
q
 
m
s
 
c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
s
a
v
e
d
 
if 

w
o
rk
s
ta
tio

n
 
s
h
a
rin

g
 
a
t 
a
 
7
:1
0
 
ra
tio

 
c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 w

ith
 im

p
ro
v
e
d
 IC

T
 to

o
ls
 e
n
a
b
lin

g
 g
re
a
te
r s

h
a
rin

g
.  S

p
a
c
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 is

 c
u
rre

n
tly
 

m
a
p
p
e
d
 a
t a

p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 8
.5
:1
0
. 

 T
h
e
 o
p
tio

n
s
 a
ll a

s
s
u
m
e
 th

e
 IT

 d
a
ta
 c
e
n
tre

 a
n
d
 C

re
a
tiv

ity
 p
rin

t s
e
rv
ic
e
 w

ill n
o
t b

e
 in

c
lu
d
e
d
 

w
ith

in
 th

e
 o

ffic
e
 e

s
ta
te
 a

n
d
 th

a
t tra

in
in
g
 fa

c
ilitie

s
 a

re
 a

t p
re
s
e
n
t p

ro
v
id
e
d
 fo

r w
ith

in
 th

e
 

fo
o
tp
rin

t.  C
o
n
tin

u
e
d
 w

o
rk
s
 w

ith
 p
a
rtn

e
rs
 m

a
y
 e
n
a
b
le
 th

is
 s
p
a
c
e
 to

 b
e
 re

le
a
s
e
d
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
 

s
u
ita

b
le
 s
h
a
re
d
 tra

in
in
g
 v
e
n
u
e
 b
e
 id

e
n
tifie

d
.  A

ll o
p
tio

n
s
 in

c
lu
d
e
 re

te
n
tio

n
 o
f th

e
 T
o
w
n
 H

a
ll 

w
ith

 its
 c
u
rre

n
t a

c
tiv

itie
s
.  F

o
r o

p
tio

n
s
 th

a
t re

ta
in
 a
 p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 a
t N

W
C
 s
ite

, it is
 a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 

th
a
t C

u
s
to
m
e
r S

e
rv
ic
e
s
 C

e
n
tre

 
w
ill re

m
a
in
 th

e
re
, fo

r o
th
e
r o

p
tio

n
s
, in

 v
ie
w
 o

f th
e
ir “o

ff 
c
e
n
tre

” lo
c
a
tio

n
s
, it is

 a
s
s
u
m
e
d
 th

a
t th

e
 B

is
h
o
p
 S

tre
e
t b

u
ild

in
g
 w

ill b
e
 u
s
e
d
.    In

 a
ll o

f th
e
 

o
p
tio

n
s
 th

e
 n
e
w
 m

a
in
 H

Q
 b
u
ild

in
g
 w

ill n
o
t m

e
e
t a

ll th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il c

ity
 c
e
n
tre

 n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
m
e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 fro

m
 th

e
 e
x
is
tin

g
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

 p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 w
ill b

e
 re

ta
in
e
d
 in

 e
a
c
h
 o
p
tio

n
. 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
7
 

A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 II 

O
p
tio
n
 1
 - R

e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t a
n
d
 s
tre
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 o
f N
W
C
 

 

T
h
e
 s
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o

f N
W
C
 w

o
u
ld
 e
n
a
b
le
 m

o
s
t o

f th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’s

 fu
tu
re
 

o
ffic

e
 n
e
e
d
s
 to

 b
e
 fu

lfille
d
 in

 o
n
e
 lo

c
a
tio

n
.  T

h
e
 re

te
n
tio

n
 o
f o

n
e
 fu

rth
e
r b

u
ild

in
g
 w

o
u
ld
 fu

lfil 
th
e
 re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
t a

n
d
 fo

r th
e
 p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 o
f a

p
p
ra
is
a
l P

h
o
e
n
ix
 H

o
u
s
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
h
o
s
e
n
 d
u
e
 to

 
its

 s
iz
e
 a
n
d
 lo

c
a
tio

n
.   

 

T
w
o
 
p
o
s
s
ib
le
 
m
e
th
o
d
o
lo
g
ie
s
 
h
a
v
e
 
b
e
e
n
 
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 
fo
r 
s
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
, 
th
e
 
u
s
e
 
o
f 
a
n
 

in
te
rn
a
l s

te
e
lw
o
rk
 s
o
lu
tio

n
 a
n
d
 a
n
 a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 p
o
s
t te

n
s
io
n
 s
o
lu
tio

n
.  In

 te
rm

s
 o
f p

ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

a
n
d
 
d
is
ru
p
tio

n
 
(b
o
th
 
s
o
lu
tio

n
s
 
w
o
u
ld
 
re
q
u
ire

 
c
o
m
p
le
te
 
v
a
c
a
tio

n
 
o
f 
th
e
 
b
u
ild

in
g
 
b
e
in
g
 

w
o
rk
e
d
 o
n
 a
n
d
 h
e
n
c
e
 re

q
u
ire

 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 d
e
c
a
n
t a

n
d
 h
e
n
c
e
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 d
is
ru
p
tio

n
 to

 
th
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
) th

e
 m

e
th
o
d
s
 a
re
 s
im

ila
r a

n
d
 fo

r th
e
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l o

f th
is
 o
p
tio

n
 th

e
 s
te
e
lw
o
rk
 

a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

s
e
d
 w

ith
 th

e
 e
x
c
lu
s
io
n
 o

f re
n
e
w
a
l o

f th
e
 fa

ç
a
d
e
. T

h
is
 w

o
u
ld
 a

d
d
 

a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 £
5
m
 to

 th
e
 c
o
s
t.  E

a
c
h
 o
p
tio

n
 in

c
lu
d
e
s
 fo

r s
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 o
f th

e
 P
ia
z
z
a
. 

 T
h
e
 re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t h

a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
s
te
d
 fo

r th
re
e
 d
iffe

re
n
t s

p
e
c
ific

a
tio

n
s
 a
n
d
 fo

r c
o
m
p
a
ris

o
n
 

w
ith

 o
th
e
r o

p
tio

n
s
 ii) h

a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
s
e
d
.  O

p
tio

n
 iii) w

o
u
ld
 o
n
ly
 d
e
a
l w

ith
 s
tru

c
tu
re
 a
n
d
 le

a
v
e
 

th
e
 o
th
e
r p

ro
b
le
m
s
 w
ith

 th
e
 b
u
ild

in
g
’s
 re

m
a
in
in
g
. 

 i. 
fu
ll re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t a

n
d
 s
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 in

c
lu
d
in
g
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 re

n
e
w
a
l o

f fa
ç
a
d
e
. 

ii. 
fu
ll re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t a

n
d
 s
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 re

n
e
w
a
l o

f fa
ç
a
d
e
.  

iii. 
S
tre

n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 
a
n
d
 
b
a
s
ic
 
re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 

e
x
c
lu
d
in
g
 
re
n
e
w
a
l 

o
f 

a
ll 

p
la
n
t, 

m
a
c
h
in
e
ry
 a
n
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
.  

 A
ll 
th
e
 
o
p
tio

n
s
 
a
s
s
u
m
e
 
a
 
s
ta
rt 

o
n
 
s
ite

 
in
 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 
2
0
1
2
 
to
 
a
llo

w
 
fo
r 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 
d
e
c
a
n
t, 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 th

ird
 p
a
rty

 n
e
g
o
tia

tio
n
. 

 

A
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 

 • 
P
rim

e
, la

n
d
m
a
rk
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

 s
ite

 w
h
e
re
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il is

 a
lre

a
d
y
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 

 • 
G
o
o
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 s
o
m
e
 b
u
s
 ro

u
te
s
, n

e
a
rb
y
 c
a
r p

a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 re

a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 
ra
ilw

a
y
 s
ta
tio

n
. 

 

• 
P
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 s
u
ita

b
le
 lo

c
a
tio

n
 fo

r im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r s

e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
e
n
tre

. 
 

• 
R
e
ta
in
s
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
tia

l w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 in

 p
a
rt o

f th
e
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

 w
h
e
re
 th

is
 lo

s
s
 w

o
u
ld
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
ific

a
n
t d

e
trim

e
n
ta
l im

p
a
c
t o

n
 th

e
 v
ita

lity
 o
f th

e
 lo

c
a
l e

c
o
n
o
m
y
 o
f 

th
a
t a

re
a
.  T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il s

ta
ff u

n
d
e
rp
in
 th

e
 fo

o
tfa

ll a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l a

c
tiv

ity
 o
f 

th
is
 q
u
a
d
ra
n
t o

f th
e
 c
ity

 c
e
n
tre

 w
h
ic
h
 c
u
rre

n
tly
 h
e
lp
s
 to

 b
a
la
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t th

e
 

‘s
h
ift’ o

f a
c
tiv

ity
 to

w
a
rd
s
 H

ig
h
c
ro
s
s
. 

 • 
L
o
c
a
tio

n
 g
iv
e
s
 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity

 to
 in

c
lu
d
e
 in

c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
tin

g
 u
s
e
s
 (s

o
m
e
 fo

rm
 o
f 

re
ta
il 
a
n
d
 
c
a
fé
 
e
tc
.) 

w
h
ic
h
 
w
o
u
ld
 
h
e
lp
 
to
 
im

p
ro
v
e
 
a
c
tiv

ity
, 
to
w
n
s
c
a
p
e
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l v

ib
ra
n
c
y
 o
f th

e
 a
re
a
s
. 

 

• 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
p
a
rtu

re
 
fro

m
 
th
e
 
s
ite

 
w
o
u
ld
 
re
q
u
ire

 
a
 
s
u
b
s
ta
n
tia

l, 
h
ig
h
 
d
e
n
s
ity
 

re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t o

f m
ix
e
d
 u
s
e
s
 c
a
p
a
b
le
 o
f re

ta
in
in
g
 a
 la

rg
e
 p
o
p
u
la
tio

n
 a
n
d
 in

 th
e
 

c
u
rre

n
t c

lim
a
te
 it is

 d
iffic

u
lt to

 e
n
v
is
a
g
e
 w

h
a
t u

s
e
s
 th

e
s
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 a
n
d
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
te
n
tio

n
 a
v
o
id
s
 th

e
 p
o
s
s
ib
ility

 o
f th

e
 s
ite

 re
m
a
in
in
g
 v
a
c
a
n
t o

r u
n
d
e
rd
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 

fo
r a

 s
ig
n
ific

a
n
t p

e
rio

d
.  P

o
s
s
ib
le
 c
a
r p

a
rk
in
g
 o
r s

tu
d
e
n
t u

s
e
. 

 

• 
T
h
e
 s
ite

 is
 in

 C
o
u
n
c
il o

w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
a
n
d
 th

e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
a
n
 
b
e
 d

e
liv
e
re
d
 
w
ith

o
u
t 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t o

f th
ird

 p
a
rty

 la
n
d
 o
w
n
e
rs
 e
x
c
e
p
t fo

r d
e
c
a
n
t p

u
rp
o
s
e
s
. 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
8
 

 
D
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 

 • 
S
u
b
s
ta
n
tia

l 
d
is
ru
p
tio

n
 
w
ith

 
c
o
m
p
le
te
 
b
lo
c
k
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
to
 
b
e
 
v
a
c
a
te
d
 
w
h
ile

 
u
n
d
e
rg
o
in
g
 
w
o
rk
s
. 
 
W
h
ile
 
s
o
m
e
 
s
ta
ff 

c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
h
o
u
s
e
d
 
in
 
o
th
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 o
r th

o
s
e
 o
f p

a
rtn

e
rs
, it is

 in
e
v
ita

b
le
 th

a
t te

m
p
o
ra
ry
 d
e
c
a
n
t s

p
a
c
e
 w

ill 
n
e
e
d
 to

 b
e
 re

n
te
d
. 

 • 
N
W
C
 c
a
r p

a
rk
 o
u
t o

f a
c
tio

n
 fo

r th
e
 p
e
rio

d
 o
f th

e
 w

o
rk
s
. 

 

• 
M
a
jo
rity

 o
f p

o
rtfo

lio
 w

ith
in
 th

e
 2
 b
lo
c
k
s
, th

e
re
fo
re
 lim

ite
d
 fle

x
ib
ility

 fo
r m

e
e
tin

g
 

fu
tu
re
 c
o
n
tra

c
tio

n
 in

 C
o
u
n
c
il s

iz
e
. 

 

• 
T
h
is
 
c
o
s
te
d
 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 
fo
r 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
fa
ç
a
d
e
 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
lly
 th

e
 b
u
ild

in
g
 w

ill a
p
p
e
a
r little

 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
, g

iv
in
g
 little

 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 to

 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 o
f v

a
lu
e
 fo

r m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 n
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 to

 C
o
u
n
c
il p

ro
file

.   
 

O
p
tio
n
 2
 - N

e
w
 b
u
ild
 o
n
 D
o
v
e
r S
tre
e
t c
a
r p
a
rk
 s
ite
 

 T
h
e
 D

o
v
e
r S

tre
e
t c

a
r p

a
rk
 s
ite

 is
 in

 C
o
u
n
c
il o

w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 a
n
d
 c
o
u
ld
 h
o
u
s
e
 a
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild

 o
ffic

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t o

f a
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 2
0
,8
0
5
 s
q
 m

s
.  H

o
w
e
v
e
r, to

 s
e
e
k
 a
 v
a
lu
e
 fo

r m
o
n
e
y
 o
p
tio

n
 

it is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 to

 h
a
v
e
 a
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild

 o
f 1

1
,1
1
7
 s
q
 m

s
 w
ith

 o
th
e
r b

u
ild

in
g
s
 re

ta
in
e
d
.  W

h
ile
 th

e
 

s
ite

 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 b
y
 th

e
 a
c
q
u
is
itio

n
 o
f a

d
ja
c
e
n
t p

ro
p
e
rty

 in
te
re
s
ts
, it is

 c
a
p
a
b
le
 o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
in
 
is
o
la
tio

n
 
a
n
d
 
fo
rm

s
 
th
e
 
b
a
s
is
 
o
f 
th
is
 
o
p
tio

n
. 
T
h
e
 
s
ite

 
is
 
h
id
d
e
n
 
b
e
h
in
d
 

p
ro
p
e
rtie

s
 th

a
t fro

n
t o

n
to
 G

ra
n
b
y
 S
tre

e
t a

n
d
 th

e
re
fo
re
 h
a
s
 n
o
 m

a
jo
r p

u
b
lic
 p
ro
file

 a
n
d
 m

a
y
 

n
o
t 
b
e
 
s
u
ita

b
le
 
fo
r 
c
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 
 
F
o
r 
th
is
 
re
a
s
o
n
 
th
e
 
B
is
h
o
p
 
S
tre

e
t 
p
ro
p
e
rty

 
is
 

in
c
lu
d
e
d
 in

 th
e
 o
p
tio

n
 fo

r c
u
s
to
m
e
r s

e
rv
ic
e
s
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
.   

 
A
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 

 • 
N
e
w
 
b
u
ild

 
g
iv
e
s
 
a
b
ility

 
to
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
n
 
e
x
e
m
p
la
r 
d
e
s
ig
n
 
w
h
ic
h
 
m
e
e
ts
 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’s

 
c
a
rb
o
n
 
re
d
u
c
tio

n
 
e
x
p
e
c
ta
tio

n
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
a
n
 
b
e
s
t 
s
u
it 

th
e
 
n
e
e
d
s
 
o
f 

m
o
d
e
rn
 w

o
rk
in
g
. 

 • 
L
o
c
a
tio

n
 is

 o
n
 th

e
 e
d
g
e
 o
f th

e
 N

e
w
 B

u
s
in
e
s
s
 Q

u
a
rte

r a
n
d
 th

e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld
 s
u
p
p
o
rt d

e
liv
e
ry
.  

 

• 
S
ite

 is
 in

 h
e
a
rt o

f c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

, c
lo
s
e
 to

 a
 k
e
y
 p
e
d
e
s
tria

n
 ro

u
te
 a
n
d
 w

o
u
ld
 c
re
a
te
 

g
re
a
te
r a

c
tiv

ity
 in

 th
e
 v
ic
in
ity
. 

 

• 
P
o
te
n
tia

l to
 h
e
lp
 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 p
e
d
e
s
tria

n
 ro

u
te
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
n
e
c
tiv

ity
 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 G

ra
n
b
y
 

S
tre

e
t a

n
d
 N

e
w
 W

a
lk
 a

re
a
, p

o
s
s
ib
ly
 
w
ith

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 b

u
s
 ro

u
te
 
a
n
d
 a

m
e
n
ity

 
s
p
a
c
e
. 

 

• 
S
ite

 
is
 
c
le
a
re
d
 
fo
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
a
lth

o
u
g
h
 
in
 
c
a
r 
p
a
rk
 
u
s
e
. 
 
D
e
s
ig
n
 
c
o
u
ld
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 fo

r s
o
m
e
 c
a
r p

a
rk
 re

p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t. 

 

• 
C
a
p
a
c
ity
 fo

r h
ig
h
 d
e
n
s
ity
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t w

ith
 s
o
m
e
 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity

 fo
r in

te
g
ra
tin

g
 

o
th
e
r in

c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
tin

g
 u
s
e
s
. 

 

• 
G
o
o
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 fa

c
ilitie

s
. 

• 
N
o
 d
e
c
a
n
t re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
t. 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

1
9
 

 
D
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 

 • 
C
u
rre

n
t b

u
s
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 lim

ite
d
 to

 a
 fe

w
 ro

u
te
s
. 

 • 
W
o
u
ld
 
n
e
e
d
 
to
 
d
e
a
l 
w
ith

 
th
ird

 
p
a
rtie

s
 
to
 
e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 
s
ite

 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
v
id
e
 
a
 

c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t. 

 

• 
P
o
s
s
ib
le
 lo

s
s
 o
f c

a
r p

a
rk
 in

c
o
m
e
 - £

2
2
8
,0
0
0
 p
a
 n
e
t. 

 

• 
B
a
c
k
w
a
te
r fe

e
l to

 s
ite

. 
 

• 
T
h
e
 
re
g
e
n
e
ra
tio

n
 
b
e
n
e
fits

 
o
f 

re
lo
c
a
tio

n
 
h
e
re
 
c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
o
u
tw

e
ig
h
e
d
 
b
y
 

d
is
b
e
n
e
fits

 to
 th

e
 N
W
C
 s
ite

 a
n
d
 a
d
jo
in
in
g
 a
re
a
. 

 

W
h
ile
 th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 is

 s
ite

 s
p
e
c
ific

 to
 D

o
v
e
r S

tre
e
t, th

e
 fin

a
n
c
ia
l im

p
a
c
t w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
im

ila
r fo

r 
a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 
s
ite

s
 
w
ith

in
 
th
e
 
c
ity
 
w
h
ic
h
 
th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
c
o
u
ld
 
lo
o
k
 
to
 
a
c
q
u
ire

 
fo
r 
n
e
w
 
b
u
ild

.  
T
h
e
re
 
w
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
a
d
d
e
d
 
c
o
s
t 
fo
r 

s
ite

 
a
c
q
u
is
itio

n
 
a
n
d
 
b
o
th
 
p
ro
je
c
t 
a
n
d
 
p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

u
n
c
e
rta

in
ly
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
 n
e
w
 b
u
ild

 o
n
 a
n
 a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 s
ite

 b
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
. 

 F
ro
m
 a
 p
a
s
t s

ite
 id

e
n
tific

a
tio

n
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
 in

 2
0
0
7
 (O

J
E
U
 a
d
v
e
rts

 p
la
c
e
d
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 

a
lte

rn
a
tiv

e
 s
ite

s
), a

 n
u
m
b
e
r o

f s
ite

s
 w

ith
 p
o
te
n
tia

l to
 b
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 w

ith
 o
ffic

e
s
 o
f th

is
 s
iz
e
 

w
e
re
 id

e
n
tifie

d
 a
n
d
 re

m
a
in
 u
n
d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
.  S

h
o
u
ld
 th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 b
e
 p
re
fe
rre

d
, th

e
n
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
u
ld
 n
e
e
d
 to

 c
o
n
s
id
e
r w

h
e
th
e
r a

 fu
rth

e
r a

d
v
e
rtis

in
g
 e
x
e
rc
is
e
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
 o
r w

h
e
th
e
r 

th
e
 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
y
 
s
e
e
k
 
to
 
id
e
n
tify

 
a
 
p
re
fe
rre

d
 
lo
c
a
tio

n
 
a
n
d
 
n
e
g
o
tia

te
 
w
ith

 
la
n
d
 
o
w
n
e
r 

a
c
c
o
rd
in
g
ly
. 

 O
p
tio
n
s
 3
 - A

c
q
u
is
itio
n
 a
n
d
 re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o
f  M

e
rc
u
ry
 b
u
ild
in
g
 

 
 T
h
is
 o
p
tio

n
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 fo

r th
e
 a
c
q
u
is
itio

n
 a
n
d
 re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o

f  th
e
 M

e
rc
u
ry
 b
u
ild

in
g
.   T

h
e
 

p
ro
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
 o
f a

 m
o
v
e
 a
w
a
y
 fro

m
 N
W
C
 a
re
 a
s
 o
u
tlin

e
d
 in

 o
p
tio

n
s
 1
 a
n
d
 2
 a
b
o
v
e
. 

 
T
h
e
 o
p
tio

n
 in

v
o
lv
e
s
 a
c
q
u
is
itio

n
 o
f a

 b
u
ild

in
g
 a
n
d
 th

e
re
fo
re
 re

q
u
ire

s
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t w

ith
 a
 th

ird
 

p
a
rty

 a
n
d
 u
n
lik
e
 o
p
tio

n
 1
 a
n
d
 2
  is

 n
o
t c

o
m
p
le
te
ly
 w

ith
in
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il‘s

 c
o
n
tro

l to
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
.  

T
h
is
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 le

v
e
l o

f u
n
c
e
rta

in
ty
 o
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
ility

 a
n
d
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 

 
T
h
e
 o
p
tio

n
 is

 m
o
d
e
lle

d
 o
n
 a
c
h
ie
v
in
g
 a
 re

fu
rb
is
h
e
d
 b
u
ild

in
g
 o
f a

p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
ly
 1
0
,7
6
7
 s
q
 m

 
th
e
re
b
y
 re

q
u
irin

g
 re

te
n
tio

n
 o
f o

th
e
r e

x
is
tin

g
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 w

ith
in
 th

e
 p
o
rtfo

lio
.  S

im
ila
r to

 o
p
tio

n
 

2
 B
is
h
o
p
 S
tre

e
t is

 re
ta
in
e
d
 in

 th
e
s
e
 o
p
tio

n
s
 fo

r c
u
s
to
m
e
r s

e
rv
ic
e
s
. 

 A
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f  th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 

 

• 
N
o
 d
e
c
a
n
t re

q
u
ire

m
e
n
t. 

 • 
L
o
c
a
tio

n
 
a
d
ja
c
e
n
t 
to
 
th
e
 
N
e
w
 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 
Q
u
a
rte

r 
a
n
d
 
C
u
ltu

ra
l 
Q
u
a
rte

r 
w
ill 

s
u
p
p
o
rt d

e
liv
e
ry
. 

 • 
H
ig
h
 p
ro
file

 b
u
ild

in
g
 w
o
u
ld
 ra

is
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il p

ro
file

. 
 

• 
P
o
te
n
tia

l 
to
 
n
e
g
o
tia

te
 
im

p
ro
v
e
d
 
p
ric

e
 
fro

m
 
th
a
t 
q
u
o
te
d
 
w
h
ic
h
 
c
o
s
ts
 
b
a
s
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
. 

 D
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f  th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 

 

• 
R
e
q
u
ire

s
 n
e
g
o
tia

tio
n
 w

ith
 a
 th

ird
 p
a
rty

. 
 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

2
0
 

• 
T
h
ird

 
p
a
rty

 
a
re
 
re
q
u
ire

d
 
to
 
v
a
c
a
te
 
to
 
a
 
tim

e
s
c
a
le
 
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 
to
 
s
tru

c
tu
ra
l 

e
n
g
in
e
e
rs
’ v

ie
w
 o
f N

W
C
. 

 

• 
C
o
s
ts
 a
s
 p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 a
re
 b
a
s
e
d
 u
p
o
n
 th

o
s
e
 s
u
p
p
lie

d
 b
y
 a
 3

rd p
a
rty

. 
 

• 
W
ill 

le
a
d
 
to
 
N
W
C
 
b
e
in
g
 
v
a
c
a
te
d
 
w
ith

 
n
e
g
a
tiv

e
 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 
th
a
t 
p
a
rt 

o
f 
c
ity
 

c
e
n
tre

. 
 O
p
tio
n
 4
  - R

e
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o
f N
W
C
 A
 B
lo
c
k
 o
n
ly
 a
n
d
 re
te
n
tio
n
 o
f o
th
e
r b
u
ild
in
g
s
 

 
T
h
is
 o
p
tio

n
 lo

o
k
s
 to

 p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 re

d
u
c
e
d
 c
o
s
t v

e
rs
io
n
 o
f o

p
tio

n
 1
 b
y
 o
n
ly
 s
e
e
k
in
g
 to

 re
fu
rb
is
h
 

a
n
d
 re

ta
in
 A

 B
lo
c
k
 w

ith
 th

e
 a

d
d
itio

n
a
l s

p
a
c
e
 re

q
u
ire

d
 p

ro
v
id
e
d
 th

ro
u
g
h
 th

e
 re

te
n
tio

n
 o
f 

o
th
e
r b

u
ild

in
g
s
 w

ith
in
 th

e
 e
x
is
tin

g
 e
s
ta
te
.  It w

o
u
ld
 b
e
 in

te
n
d
e
d
 th

a
t B

 B
lo
c
k
 th

e
n
 b
e
 s
o
ld
 

fo
r re

fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t o

r d
e
m
o
litio

n
 a
n
d
 re

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t. 

 T
h
e
 re

v
e
rs
e
 o
p
tio

n
 o
f re

ta
in
in
g
 B

 B
lo
c
k
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
u
t b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o
f its

 s
m
a
lle
r 

s
iz
e
 it w

o
u
ld
 re

q
u
ire

 re
te
n
tio

n
 o
f th

e
 m

a
jo
rity

 o
f th

e
 re

m
a
in
in
g
 e
s
ta
te
 in

c
lu
d
in
g
 b
u
ild

in
g
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 w

o
u
ld
 n
o
t s

u
p
p
o
rt m

o
d
e
rn
 w

o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 h
a
s
 n
o
t b

e
e
n
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 
A
 
B
lo
c
k
 
o
p
tio

n
 
w
o
u
ld
 
re
q
u
ire

 
d
e
c
a
n
t 
b
u
t 
w
o
u
ld
 
re
ta
in
 
th
e
 
b
e
n
e
fits

 
o
f 
o
p
tio

n
 
1
 

re
g
a
rd
in
g
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il c

o
n
tin

u
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f th

e
 N

W
C
 s
ite

. 
 T
h
e
 c
o
s
te
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t in

c
lu
d
e
 fo

r 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t o

f th
e
 fa

ç
a
d
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
te
rn
a
lly
 th

e
 

b
u
ild

in
g
 w

ill a
p
p
e
a
r little

 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
. 

 A
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 

 • 
P
rim

e
, la

n
d
m
a
rk
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

 s
ite

 w
h
e
re
 th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il is

 a
lre

a
d
y
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
. 

 • 
G
o
o
d
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 s
o
m
e
 b
u
s
 ro

u
te
s
, n

e
a
rb
y
 c
a
r p

a
rk
s
 a
n
d
 re

a
s
o
n
a
b
le
 a
c
c
e
s
s
 to

 
ra
ilw

a
y
 s
ta
tio

n
. 

 

• 
P
ro
v
id
e
s
 a
 s
u
ita

b
le
 lo

c
a
tio

n
 fo

r im
p
ro
v
e
d
 c
u
s
to
m
e
r s

e
rv
ic
e
s
 c
e
n
tre

. 
 

• 
R
e
ta
in
s
 s
u
b
s
ta
n
tia

l w
o
rk
fo
rc
e
 in

 p
a
rt o

f th
e
 c
ity
 c
e
n
tre

 w
h
e
re
 th

is
 lo

s
s
 w

o
u
ld
 

h
a
v
e
 a
 s
ig
n
ific

a
n
t d

e
trim

e
n
ta
l im

p
a
c
t o

n
 th

e
 v
ita

lity
 o
f th

e
 lo

c
a
l e

c
o
n
o
m
y
 o
f 

th
a
t a

re
a
.  T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il s

ta
ff u

n
d
e
rp
in
 th

e
 fo

o
tfa

ll a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l a

c
tiv

ity
 o
f 

th
is
 q
u
a
d
ra
n
t o

f th
e
 c
ity

 c
e
n
tre

 w
h
ic
h
 c
u
rre

n
tly
 h
e
lp
s
 to

 b
a
la
n
c
e
 a
g
a
in
s
t th

e
 

‘s
h
ift’ o

f a
c
tiv

ity
 to

w
a
rd
s
 H

ig
h
c
ro
s
s
. 

 • 
L
o
c
a
tio

n
 g
iv
e
s
 o
p
p
o
rtu

n
ity

 to
 in

c
lu
d
e
 in

c
o
m
e
 g
e
n
e
ra
tin

g
 u
s
e
s
 (s

o
m
e
 fo

rm
 o
f 

re
ta
il 
a
n
d
 
c
a
fé
 
e
tc
.) 

w
h
ic
h
 
w
o
u
ld
 
h
e
lp
 
to
 
im

p
ro
v
e
 
a
c
tiv

ity
, 
to
w
n
s
c
a
p
e
 
a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
ia
l v

ib
ra
n
c
y
 o
f th

e
 a
re
a
s
. 

 

• 
T
h
e
 s
ite

 is
 in

 C
o
u
n
c
il o

w
n
e
rs
h
ip
 
a
n
d
 th

e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
a
n
 
b
e
 d

e
liv
e
re
d
 
w
ith

o
u
t 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t o

f th
ird

 p
a
rty

 la
n
d
 o
w
n
e
rs
 e
x
c
e
p
t fo

r d
e
c
a
n
t p

u
rp
o
s
e
s
. 

 D
is
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f th

is
 o
p
tio

n
 

 • 
S
u
b
s
ta
n
tia

l 
d
is
ru
p
tio

n
 
w
ith

 
c
o
m
p
le
te
 
b
lo
c
k
 
n
e
e
d
e
d
 
to
 
b
e
 
v
a
c
a
te
d
 
w
h
ile

 
u
n
d
e
rg
o
in
g
 
w
o
rk
s
. 
 
W
h
ile
 
s
o
m
e
 
s
ta
ff 

c
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
h
o
u
s
e
d
 
in
 
o
th
e
r 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 o
r th

o
s
e
 o
f p

a
rtn

e
rs
, it is

 in
e
v
ita

b
le
 th

a
t te

m
p
o
ra
ry
 d
e
c
a
n
t s

p
a
c
e
 w

ill 
n
e
e
d
 to

 b
e
 re

n
te
d
. 

 • 
N
W
C
 c
a
r p

a
rk
 o
u
t o

f a
c
tio

n
 fo

r th
e
 p
e
rio

d
 o
f th

e
 w

o
rk
s
. 

 



W
O
R
D
2
0
0
3
/2
9
0
3
.D
/O

S
M
B
/N
J
G
/la
te
s
t 2
4
.1
.1
1
  

2
1
 

• 
T
h
is
 
c
o
s
te
d
 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 
d
o
e
s
 
n
o
t 
in
c
lu
d
e
 
fo
r 
re
p
la
c
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 
fa
ç
a
d
e
 
a
n
d
 

e
x
te
rn
a
lly
 th

e
 b
u
ild

in
g
 w

ill a
p
p
e
a
r little

 c
h
a
n
g
e
d
, g

iv
in
g
 little

 u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 to

 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 o
f v

a
lu
e
 fo

r m
o
n
e
y
 a
n
d
 n
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 to

 C
o
u
n
c
il p

ro
file

. 
 O
p
tio
n
 5
 - N

e
w
 B
u
ild
 o
n
 N
W
C
 s
ite
 

 T
h
is
 o
p
tio

n
 in

v
o
lv
e
s
 th

e
 d
e
m
o
litio

n
 o
f B

 B
lo
c
k
, th

e
 re

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t o

f th
e
 c
le
a
re
d
 s
ite

 w
ith

 a
 

n
e
w
 o
ffic

e
 o
f e

q
u
iv
a
le
n
t s

iz
e
 to

 th
a
t o

u
tlin

e
d
 fo

r D
o
v
e
r S

tre
e
t in

 o
p
tio

n
 2
 a
b
o
v
e
, re

te
n
tio

n
 o
f 

s
im

ila
r a

d
d
itio

n
a
l b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a
n
d
 th

e
 e
v
e
n
tu
a
l s

a
le
 (d

e
m
o
litio

n
) o

f A
 B
lo
c
k
. 

 T
h
is
 o
p
tio

n
 a
g
a
in
 re

ta
in
s
 th

e
 a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
u
tlin

e
d
 in

 o
p
tio

n
 1
 w
ith

 th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il re

m
a
in
in
g
 o
n
 

N
W
C
 s
ite

, re
q
u
ire

s
 a
 re

d
u
c
e
d
 d
e
c
a
n
t a

s
 fe

w
e
r s

ta
ff a

re
 h
o
u
s
e
d
 in

 B
 B

lo
c
k
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 

th
e
 A

 B
lo
c
k
 s
ite

 w
ith

 its
 fro

n
ta
g
e
 to

 W
e
lfo

rd
 R

o
a
d
 fo

r c
o
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t.  T

h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fits

 o
f n

e
w
 b
u
ild

 o
ffic

e
s
 a
s
 o
u
tlin

e
d
 in

 o
p
tio

n
 2
 w

o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 b
e
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 fo

r th
is
 o
p
tio

n
 is

 d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t u

p
o
n
 th

e
 re

lo
c
a
tio

n
 o
f th

e
 d
a
ta
 c
e
n
tre

 b
e
in
g
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 p
rio

r to
 d
e
m
o
litio

n
 o
f B

 B
lo
c
k
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rta

k
e
n
. 

 O
th
e
r 
b
u
ild

in
g
s
 
re
ta
in
e
d
 
w
o
u
ld
 
b
e
 
S
o
v
e
re
ig
n
 
H
o
u
s
e
, 
1
6
 
N
e
w
 
W
a
lk
, 
P
h
o
e
n
ix
 
H
o
u
s
e
, 

W
e
llin

g
to
n
 H

o
u
s
e
 a
n
d
 p
a
rt o

f Y
o
rk
 H

o
u
s
e
. 

 S
c
o
re
s
 a
g
a
in
s
t a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t c
rite

ria
 

 O
p
tio

n
 1
 

3
2
3
 

O
p
tio

n
 2
 

3
3
6
 

O
p
tio

n
 3
 

3
5
7
 

O
p
tio

n
 4
 

3
3
8
 

O
p
tio

n
 5
 

3
2
2
 

   



T
h

is
 p

a
g
e

 is
 le

ft b
la

n
k
 in

te
n
tio

n
a
lly

.



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\9\4\AI00034498\$3bqgcbjt.doc 
Page 1 of 4 

 WARDS AFFECTED 
 All Wards 
 
 
 
 

 
FORWARD TIMETABLE OF CONSULTATION AND MEETINGS: 
Cabinet Lead 12th January 2011 
OSMB 3rd February 2011 
Cabinet Briefing 17th January 2011 
Cabinet 7th February 2011  
__________________________________________________________________________  
 

Watercourse Maintenance & Improvement - Capital Programme for 2010/2011 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
Report of the Strategic Director, Development, Culture and Regeneration  
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To seek Cabinet approval to spend the 2010/11 Watercourse Improvement budgets. 
 
2. SUMMARY 

Leicester City Council’s approved capital programme for the 2010/2011 financial year  
includes a sum of £50,000 for watercourse maintenance and improvements. When 
setting the budget, Cabinet recommended that before committing this expenditure, a 
further report be brought to Cabinet for approval. It is proposed to undertake a number 
of minor works on watercourse and drainage features around the City. The proposals 
include cutting down/pruning trees on ordinary watercourses and measures to alleviate 
the risk of flooding at known highway flood “hot-spots”. This report asks for approval to 
spend the 2010/2011 Watercourse Maintenance/Improvement budget on these works. 

 
3. RECOMMENDATIONS  

Cabinet is asked to approve the expenditure of the 2010/2011 Watercourse 
Maintenance and Improvement budget. 

 
4.  REPORT 

The following is a brief summary of the works proposed: 
 
4.1 General Riparian Owner Issues. As a landowner we have a number of watercourse 

sites with overgrown or unsafe trees that pose a potential flood risk and are also posing 
a potential risk to adjacent properties. Accordingly, we propose cut back/fell problem 
trees on the brook banks where we are the riparian owner and replace with trees in 
more appropriate locations. We have also identified a site with Japanese Knotweed 
growing and propose to continue undertake treatment works to eradicate this. See 
Appendix 1 for more details. 

 
 
 
 

Appendix C



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\9\4\AI00034498\$3bqgcbjt.doc 
Page 2 of 4 

4.2 Flood Alleviation at flooding hotspots  
There are several flooding ‘hotspots’ on the watercourse network that are prone to 
flooding and need minor works to prevent future flooding. See Appendix 1 for more 
details.  

 
5. FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
5.1.  Financial Implications 

There is a budget allocation in the Corporate Capital Programme for 2010/2011 which 
was approved by Cabinet on 17th March 2008 of £50,000 for Watercourse Maintenance 
and Improvements. Any expenditure on these budgets is subject to a further report 
being taken to Cabinet. Approval to spend the budget was agreed at the Spending 
Moratorium Exemption Panel meeting on the 20th December 2010. 

 
 Paresh Radia, Deputy Head of Finance, Regeneration and Culture, Ext 29 6507. 
 
5.2 Legal Implications 

The Land Drainage Act 1991 places powers on the Council to undertake works for 
preventing flooding or mitigating any damage caused by flooding in its area. These 
powers are: 

 
a) to maintain existing watercourse or drainage works, by way of cleansing, repair or 

otherwise in a state of efficiency 
b) to improve existing watercourse or drainage works 
c) to construct new watercourse or drainage works required for the drainage of land. 

 

Jamie Guazzaroni Solicitor, Legal Services, RAD, Ext 29 6350 (November 2008). 
 
5.3  Climate Change Implications 
 The only climate change implications of the report are that it will reduce the possibilities 

of flooding due to climate change. 
 
6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS YES/NO Paragraph references within the report 

Equal Opportunities No  

Policy No  

Sustainable and Environmental No  

Crime and Disorder No  

Human Rights Act No  

Elderly/People on Low Income No  

 
7.  RISK ASSESSMENT MATRIX 
  

Risk Likelihood 
L/M/H 

Severity Impact 
L/M/H 

Control Actions 
(if necessary/appropriate) 

1) Adverse H L Severe weather warning 



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\9\4\AI00034498\$3bqgcbjt.doc 
Page 3 of 4 

weather conditions procedures in place. Suspend 
works in severe weather. 

2) Damage to 
waterside 
environment. 

L M Site environmental management 
procedures already exist to 
manage risks to watercourse from 
works, e.g. spillages. 

3) Conflict with 
other works. 

L L Attend co-ordination meetings and 
include schemes in general works 
programme. 

4) Health & Safety L M Safe system of work is routinely 
established for individual schemes. 

5) Budget 
overspend due to 
unforeseen works. 

L L Schemes will be programmed such 
that they are not all carried out 
concurrently allowing for some 
scheme to be dropped if necessary 
to stay within budget. 

    
 L – Low 

M – Medium 
H - High 

L – Low 
M – Medium 
H - High 

 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS – LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 

• Report to Cabinet 17th March 2008 entitled “Capital Programme –Overall Strategy”. 
• Report to Council 27th March 2008 entitled “Capital Programme – Overall Strategy”. 

 
9. CONSULTATIONS 

• Legal Services (Re. Cabinet report dated 17th November 2008). 
• Finance Team, Regeneration & Culture. 
• Staff in Regeneration, Highways & Transportation. 

  
10. REPORT AUTHOR 
 
 Alan Adcock, Head of Highway Maintenance 
 
 Ext. 39 2042 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\9\4\AI00034498\$3bqgcbjt.doc 
Page 4 of 4 

Appendix 1. 
 

List of Proposed Watercourse Works 
 

 

1. Gilroes Brook - There are three parts to this brook; the lay-by entrance from the ring road, 
the entrance from inside the cemetery and also along side Groby Road which is about 150m 
in length. Cutting back along the above length. 
  
2. Queens Road Brook  - Cutting back along its length this is approximately 50m long 

  
3. Ethel Road Brook - Cutting back from the grid approx 50m 

  
4. Western Park Brook - Cutting back from the grid approx 75m 
   
5. River Biam and its tributaries (which run through Aylestone Playing Fields) - Cutting 
back along the River Biam (approx 200m long) and the tributaries (approx 200m long). 
  
6 Greengate Lane - All the highway drains run into a highway ditch. This ditch needs clearing 
out and the hedge needs cutting back or the drains will not run. 
  
7. Chesterfield Road - We have got Japanese knotweed on a brook bank for which we are 
responsible. We need to carry out treatment works this spring and the cost is £2500.  
 
8. Citywide - We have got many trees that need cutting back which are our responsibility as 
a 'Riparian' owner of brook banks along the enmained watercourses. 
 



DIVISIONAL RESPONSE TO THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE 

ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY TASK GROUP REPORT ON 

LEICESTER’S FLOOD MANAGEMENT AND ALLEVIATION ARRANGEMENTS. 

 

1. The Regeneration, Highways and Transportation Division fully support the 
recommendations of the Flood Management and Alleviation Task Group. The Task 
Group has received various relevant reports from internal and external groups that, 
together with the subsequent discussions, will benefit the Council in how it moves 
forward on this important issue. The exchange of information and liaison within the 
Council and with external bodies has been a key success of the Task Group 
especially for the future development of Flood Management in the City, County and 
the region.     
 
2. The Environment Agency's latest mapping issued on 14/12/2010 to help Lead 
Local Flood Authority (LLFAs) with the production of their Preliminary Flood Risk 
Assessments (PFRAs) has identified Leicester as one of only ten areas in the 
country that meet the criteria for an "Indicative Flood Risk Area" from surface water 
flooding on a national level. We can therefore expect a lot of interest from 
Government on how we develop our Local Flood Risk Management Strategy to 
manage this risk and the recommendations of the Task group stands us in good 
stead. 

 

3. The Task Group has produced an impetus for flood risk management that, aided 
by Defra funding, has meant that the authority as a Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) is considered at the moment an ‘exemplar authority’ by the Environment 
Agency. The responsibilities of a LLFA are considerable for the authority. Therefore 
it is hoped that the current progress can be continued in the future by the forming of 
a corporate Flood Risk Management Board, chaired by the Director of Corporate 
Governance and reporting to the Reducing Carbon Footprint Priority Board.  In the 
Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment report guidance, one of 
the actions/requirements is that we have to report on is our flood risk management 
governance arrangements and partnership development. The forming of the 
corporate Flood Risk Management Board will provide this. It can also take forward 
the development of a Local Flood Risk Management Strategy for the City for the 
long term taking into account the risk from all forms of flooding, and surface water 
flooding in-particular.  

 

4. We have recently been informed that the City Council has been given an Area 
Based Grant by Defra of £137,900 for 20011/12 and £235,900 for 20012/13 and 
thereafter to fund carrying out its duties as a LLFA as detailed in the main OSMB 
report. This is to be welcomed but the grant is not ringfenced for these duties. 
Therefore the Division would support the recommendation of OSMB that this 
funding is ringfenced for carrying out its duties as a LLFA.  

 
5. The Planning and Economic Development Division also support the findings of the 
Task Group and will work with R,H&T and other Divisions to implement them. 
Recommendations relating to building skills and knowledge of Sustainable Urban 
Drainage Systems in the Planning Service are already being taken forward internally 
and the Information Services Team are liaising with others regarding the provision of 
electronic flooding data to support the PFRA and other issues. The Task Group has 

Appendix D



led to closer working that can be continued in the future and coordinated through the 
corporate Flood Risk Management Board.  
 
6. One of the recommendations of the Pitt Report was that local authorities should 
prepare an annual report to their Scrutiny Committees on flood risk management and 
any associated issues. This Task Group report hopefully sets the scene for these 
annual reports and will enable the authority to mitigate the high risk of flooding within 
the City. 
 
7. A key part of the success of Task Group was the enthusiasm and involvement of 
members and Committee Secretariat officers in preparing documents, arranging 
visits and visitors and preparing the final report – all 20 pages of it plus appendices.   
 
 
Alan Adcock 
Head of Highway Maintenance 
 
  

       



 WARDS AFFECTED 
 Type in Ward  : Beaumont Leys 
 
 
 
 

 
FORWARD TIMETABLE OF CONSULTATION AND MEETINGS: 
Priority Board – Planning for People not Cars 22 December 2010 
Strategic Management Board 11 January 2011 
Cabinet Briefing 17 January 2011 
Cabinet 7 February 2011 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 

ASHTON GREEN – STAGE 2   

__________________________________________________________________________  
 
Report of Director of Planning and Economic Development 

1. Purpose of Report  

1.1 The report seeks approval for stage 2 of the Ashton Green project following outline planning 
approval at Planning Committee.  

2. Recommendations  

2.1  Cabinet is requested to:  

a. note the outline planning approval received at the Planning & Development 
Control Committee on 20 December. 

b. approve a sum of £325,500 within the Capital Programme to support the project 
through the developer procurement stage to enable land disposals and a potential 
start on site from 2012/13 onwards. 

3. Summary 

3.1 The Ashton Green scheme was approved, subject to conditions, at the Planning and 
Development Control Committee on 20 December 2010. 

  
3.2 The next stage of the project will involve work through the in house project team to satisfy 

conditions placed on the scheme, continue consultation with the local community, procure 
potential developers, and ultimately dispose of the first phase of the site. A potential start on 
site in 2012/13 is envisaged. 

 
3.3 Additional resources will need to be allocated to carry the project forward including the 

continued in house commitment on housing, education, community, transport, property, 
procurement and legal.  A further allocation from the Capital Programme of £325,000 is 
requested to fund a continuation of dedicated project management support as well as 
specialist legal and other professional support e.g. highways advice. External funding 

Appendix E



sources are being considered to offset this cost including New Homes Bonus and Homes 
and Communities Agency funding. 

4. Report 
 

 Progress to date 
4.1 Work on stage 1 of the project has progressed well to develop a masterplan and submit an 

outline planning application in June 2010.  Planning approval was received, subject to 
conditions, on 20th December at the Planning & Development Control Committee. This help 
to provide certainty to potential developers that the site will be available for development 
and substantive discussions on site disposal/joint venture options are continuing.  

 

4.2 There has been extensive consultation on the project since the visioning workshops of 
2008/09 with various briefings with Cabinet (and Leader/Cabinet lead Members), Ward 
Councillors, Priority Boards, SMB, local resident groups and other stakeholders. A draft 
masterplan was taken through public consultation in November 2009 and the outline 
planning application was widely publicised in late June 2010. 

 
4.3 The final version of the Ashton Green masterplan was developed to deliver ‘One Leicester’ 

aspirations and formed the basis of the outline planning application (OPA) submission with 
the key elements being; 
 
§ Up to 3,000 mixed tenure new homes (including 30% affordable housing and extra care 
housing) 

§ Range of family homes with a variety of type and tenure 
§ Employment land of up to 5 hectares 
§ Approximately 2,000 permanent new jobs as well as construction jobs and opportunities 
for local labour and training etc over a 15 to 20 year period. 

§ Co-located education, health and community facilities based around an ‘all aged’ school 
(420 place two form entry primary in Phase A) 

§ 49 ha of open space 
§ Zero carbon homes from 2016 and low carbon from 2013 
§ Comprehensive and early public transport interventions (extending bus routes) and 
walking/cycling infrastructure. 

§ Integration with adjacent communities. 
§ Clear and challenging delivery aim for a 950 new homes in the first 5 years from 2012. 

 
4.4 The outline planning approval is subject to a number of planning conditions/obligations that 

will require the early delivery of essential infrastructure to bring the first phases of 
development forward. These costs, unless offset by external grant funding, are likely to 
have  a significant impact on the potential capital receipt in the early phase of development. 
It is critical that essential site infrastructure is provided in the first phase to get the scheme 
started given the prospects for the housing market for short to medium term. Furthermore, 
the later phases of development will not be burdened with such substantial up front 
infrastructure costs and will deliver significantly better longer term capital receipts. 

 
 
 
 
 



4.5 The key issue that has arisen throughout the public consultation and masterplanning work 
since early 2009 has been transportation. These concerns have been extensively 
documented in the consultations reports of February and June 2010 and were submitted 
and considered as part of outline planning application submission. The transport working 
group, comprised of officers from the City Council and the County Council, the Highways 
Agency, external transport consultants and advisers from the HCA have worked over the 
last 18 months to prepare a comprehensive transport assessment, a transport strategy and 
travel plan framework to address the transportation issues arising out of the development. 

 
4.6 The outcome of the transport work has been the approval of the three highway authorities to 

a comprehensive package of transport infrastructure measures in documented 35 no 
planning conditions in the outline planning permission granted in December 2010. The 
financial cost implications of these early interventions will have a significant impact the 
anticipated capital receipts from land sales in the early phases of development. However, 
without this commitment, Ashton Green will fail to deliver sustainable transport solutions 
and mitigate the impact of this development on neighbouring communities. 

 
4.7 There are a substantial number of conditions in the outline planning permission that will 

require the Council as land owner to address the other key issues that have arisen out of 
the public consultation work, that has both informed and influenced the masterplan and 
outline planning application. These include for example; 

 
a) site wide phasing programme (Conditions 6 and 7) 
b) high quality design including design codes (Conditions 8 and 9)  
c) early delivery of essential transport infrastructure; off site highway improvements, 

travel planning, car parking and traffic calming strategies, freight traffic movement 
proposals and public transport improvements (Conditions 46 to 80) 

d) management and governance strategy (Condition 81) 
e) carbon reduction strategy linked to the agreed energy statement (Conditions 10 and 

11) 
f) affordable housing (Conditions 12 to 15) 
g) green infrastructure strategy and related matters (Conditions 21 to 29) 

 
4.8 There is strong interest being shown in the employment land from a major local employer. 

Negotiations are underway and a work is being undertaken to prepare draft design 
proposals. 

 
Delivery/ Developer Procurement Strategy – Stage 2 
 

4.9 A Delivery Framework, April 2010 prepared in conjunction with the masterplan, sets out 
broad principles and processes to take forward development on the site and identifies a 
number of the delivery and governance mechanisms for Ashton Green. It also identifies 
further work is required by the Council, including ongoing market testing, consultation with 
the local community and discussion with potential public sector funding partners etc to take 
the project through to development on the ground.  

 
4.10 The preferred option for delivery is likely to be a joint venture or longer term development 

partnership approach between the Council and other public sector partners and a developer 
consortium. This would require the enabling role of Council and the commitment to building 



a relationship with a developer consortium for an agreed period of time, such as the first 5 
year phase.  

 
4.11 This route would require an EU procurement process of 12 to 18 months and would 

effectively tie the Council into a development partnership for an agreed period of time or an 
agreed quantum of development. The use of the HCA’s developer delivery panel may offer 
an opportunity to reduce the overall timescale of the procurement process and enable an 
earlier start on site and thus this route is being explored. 

 
4.12  The ongoing ‘soft market testing’ of the development industry is providing an insight into the 

developer’s response to the delivery procurement options and this will reveal clearly what 
mechanisms will be required to attract the right development partner(s). The initial 
discussions with the local development industry indicate support for the preferred delivery 
strategy, a keen interest in the project and the likelihood of competing bids from a number 
of developer consortiums. 

 
4.13 Finally, there is strong interest being expressed in the employment land from a major local 

employer and detailed negotiations are underway. The early release of this opportunity 
could not only provide new jobs, but also secure an early land receipt. This could be used to 
reinvest to help deliver other essential site infrastructure to help kick start delivery of the 
proposed housing in phase 1. 

 
Stage 2 Work programmes 2010/11  

 
4.14 Stage 2 of the project will include a number of major work streams including; 

implementation and delivery/procurement planning, the design quality review process, the 
carbon reduction strategy, the transport programme, the community social infrastructure 
programme and work streams regarding governance, management, communication and 
community consultation. This new work to enable physical delivery on the ground will 
require a corporate commitment to ongoing resources and project support on housing, 
education, community, transport, procurement and legal matters. In particular it is expected 
that TLE will lead a project work stream that will enable the first phase of community social 
infrastructure based around a new primary school to be opened towards the end of the first 
housing phase. 

 
 Project Costs 
4.15 The cost of key stage 1 over three financial years, to 31 March 2011, will be £1.134m with 

£834,000 of this sum having been secured from New Growth Point capital and revenue 
funding.  

 
 
 
 
 
4.16 The estimated costs for stage 2 of the project are outlined in the table below. 
 

 2011/12 2012/13 Total 

Project management – 
project manager, admin & IT 
support  

£65,000 £65,000 £130,000 



Legal costs – developer 
procurement process 

£30,000 £20,000 £50,000 

Specialist advice e.g. 
highway design 

£80,000 £50,000 £130,000 

Totals £175,000 £135,000 £310,000 

contingencies @ 5% £15,500 

 £325,500 

 
4.17 In order to minimise the additional costs the project, there has to be the continued corporate 

support of in house resources at no extra cost to the project as outlined in 4.10 above. The 
costs in the table above include a small provision for specialist external advice, if required, 
but it is expected that Divisions will need to prioritise required resources to continue the 
momentum of Ashton Green towards the actual delivery of new homes and jobs. 

 
4.18 A sum of £325,000 is recommended to be allocated form the Council’s Capital Programme. 

Possible options for securing external project funding to offset this sum are being explored 
including; 

 
a) New Homes Bonus scheme and Tax Increment Financing (TIF) both ofwhich are 

currently subject to Government consultation 
b) External funding from the Homes and Communities Agency ( funding details through 

the sub regional Local Investment Plan (LIP) are  awaited) 
c) Prudential borrowing from future anticipated capital receipts 

 
5. FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1  Financial Implications 
 
5.1.1 Ashton Green is the major area of future growth for the City and has the potential to 

generate significant total receipts over 15 to 20 years. 
 
5.1.2 Funding for project to date has been provided through the City Council’s capital programme 

and a combination of NGP capital and revenue funding. 
 
5.1.3 The actual projects spend to date since 2007/08 is £1,029 million and the 2010/11 year end 

forecast is £1,134,562. 
 
5.1.4 The estimated costs for stage 2 of the project for 2011/12 and 2012/13 is £325,500 as 

detailed in paragraph 4.13.  
 
5.1.5 The preferred option for financing the £325,500 costs in 2011/12 and 2012/13 is funding 

from the Leicester and Leicestershire Local Investment Plan from the HCA. Although Ashton 
Green is a top priority for the Council for this funding stream, details have yet to be 
confirmed so there is a risk that this funding won’t be available. In such a case, the cost of 
£325,500 would have to be a call on the Council’s corporate capital programme if the 
Ashton Green project is to continue in its current form.  

 
 Martin Judson, Head of Finance (29 7390) 
 
5.2 Legal Implications 



 
5.2.1 When disposing of land, the Council has a duty under s123 of the Local Government Act 

1972 to obtain the best consideration reasonably obtainable. A ‘disposal’ can take the form 
of a freehold disposal or the grant of a lease for a term exceeding 7 years. If the Council 
wishes to dispose of land at less than best consideration then it requires the Secretary of 
State’s (‘SOS’) consent before the disposal can proceed. 

 
5.2.2 If land is not marketed then the Council cannot demonstrate that the price agreed 

represents best consideration. However, if we can demonstrate that the difference in value 
(if any) between what we will receive and the unrestricted value of the land is £2million or 
less then we may be able to utilise the provisions of the General Development Consent 
2003 (‘GDC’) without further reference to the SOS. The GDC allows a disposal at an 
undervalue if the Council considers that the disposal will help it to secure the promotion or 
improvement of economic, social or environmental well-being of its’ area eg the creation of 
additional jobs or assistance with delivering the objectives of the One Leicester Strategy. 

 
5.2.3 The Council must have regard to the Disposals Framework and also must take account of 
 the Council’s general fiduciary duty to act reasonably in the interests of the electorate and 
 consistent with effective economic and efficient discharge of the authority’s functions. 
 
 Alex Snowdon, Legal Services (29 6340) 

5.3  Climate Change Implications  
 

5.3.1 Addressing the impacts and implications of Climate Change is at heart of the vision for 
Ashton Green as outlined in the masterplan and the commitment to delivering zero carbon 
homes by 2016.  

 

Helen Lansdown, Environment Team (29 6770) 

 

6. Other Implications 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS YES/
NO 

Paragraph/References 
Within the Report 

Equal Opportunities Yes Are addressed within the Sustainability 
Protocol (Vision and key development 
principles document) 

Policy Yes  Ashton Green is identified in the LDF Core 
Strategy 

Sustainable and Environmental Yes Are addressed within the Sustainability 
Protocol  

Crime and Disorder Yes Are addressed within the Sustainability 
Protocol  

Human Rights Act No  

Elderly/People on Low Income Yes Are addressed within the Sustainability 



Protocol  

Corporate Parenting No  

Health Inequalities Impact Yes Are addressed within the Sustainability 
Protocol  

 
 
7. Risk Assessment Matrix 
 
 

Key Risks Likelihood 
L/M/H 

Severity Impact 
L/M/H 

Control Actions 
(if necessary/appropriate) 

1. Lack of developer 
engagement through the 
procurement process. 

L M § Early ‘soft market’ testing 
and recent enquiries 
indicate good developer 
interest in the site. 

§ Recent evidence of house 
price increases suggests 
that housing market 
conditions have improved. 

2. Issues of financial 
viability impacting on the 
project delivery. 

H H § The need for a robust 
prioritisation process of 
competing requirements 
from Ashton Green; capital 
receipts, s106 requirements 
has been clearly 
articulated. 

§ The need for external 
funding support has also 
been identified and the 
relevant processes are 
planned for. 

3. Lack of project 
management resource 
impacting on delivery. 

M H § The need for longer term 
project support beyond 
2010/11 has been identified 
in the report. 

 
 
 
8. Background Papers - Local Government Act 1972 
 
 Cabinet Briefing 1 November 2010 
 SMB 26 October 2010 
 Planning for People not Cars Priority Board 22 September 2010 
 Planning for People not Cars Priority Board 26 May 2010 
 SMB 25 May 2010 
 Reduce Carbon Footprint Priority Board 19 May 2010 
 Cabinet Briefing 17 May 2010 
 Reduce Carbon Footprint Priority Board 17 March 2010 
 Planning for People not Cars Priority Board 24 February 2010 



 SMB 8 December 2009 
 Planning for People not Cars Priority Board 2 December 2009 
 Cabinet Briefing 3 August 2009 
 Strategic Management Board 7 July 2009 
 Strategic Management Board 5 May 2009  
 Cabinet Report 5 January 2009 
 
 
9. Consultations 

9.1 A series of consulatation events have been held involving the local community, ward and 
cabinet members, internal and external partners/stakeholders. Formal consultation was 
carried out as part of the planning application process. 

 
10. Report Author 
  
 Geoff Mee 
 Ashton Green Project Manager 
 Extension: 29 7156 
 Email:Geoff.Mee@leicester.gov.uk 

 

 

 



       WARDS AFFECTED 
       All Wards 
 
 
 
 

 
FORWARD TIMETABLE OF CONSULTATION AND MEETINGS: 
SMB 7

th December 2010 
Cabinet Briefing 17th January 2010 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Board 3rd February 2011 
Cabinet 7th February 2011 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 

Sub Regional Economic Development Review 

__________________________________________________________________________  

Report of the Strategic Director Development, Culture and Regeneration  

1. Purpose of Report  

1.1. To update members on the development of a new approach to support economic 
development in the Leicester and Leicestershire sub-region, including the establishment of 
a Local Enterprise Partnership and a Single Delivery Vehicle (combining Prospect 
Leicestershire and Leicestershire Promotions). 

2. Recommendations  
2.1. Cabinet is recommended to: 

a. Approve the establishment of a Local Enterprise Partnership for Leicester and 
Leicestershire (LLEP). 

b. Approve combining Prospect Leicestershire and Leicestershire Promotions into a Single 
Delivery Vehicle (SDV) for Leicester and Leicestershire, to be a jointly held company 
between the City and County Councils. 

c. Delegate authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader, to finalise all 
matters relating to the establishment of the LLEP and SDV. 

d. Make financial provision, as set out in the report, for the establishment of the LLEP and 
SDV, taking into account any associated liabilities from the existing delivery bodies. 

3. Summary 

3.1. This report summarises the background to the new sub regional economic working 
proposals and highlights the changing funding context. It recommends establishment of a 
Local Enterprise Partnership and a Single Delivery Vehicle (SDV). 

3.2. The SDV would combine Prospect Leicestershire and Leicestershire Promotions into one 
body, jointly held by the City and County. The new body would be focused on tourism, place 
promotion and inward investment into the sub region. 

 

 

Appendix F



4. Report 

Background 

4.1. New sub regional economic development bodies were established by the City and County 
Councils in 2009 following reforms carried out by the previous Government: 

i) A sub regional partnership focussed on programme management and the preparation 
of strategy and commissioning of economic development activity. This has been 
supported through the shared staffing unit hosted by the City Council and funded 
through partnership contributions.  

ii) An Economic Development Company known as Prospect Leicestershire Ltd. This 
replaced the Leicester Regeneration Company that had focused solely on the city. The 
Prospect mandate covered the delivery of physical regeneration of key strategic sites, 
inward investment and aspects of business support across Leicester and 
Leicestershire.   

4.2. The City Council, County Council and other partners have also been supporting 
Leicestershire Promotions Limited for some time. This company has a focus on boosting 
tourism throughout the sub-region. It was also previously responsible for inward investment 
activity prior to the establishment of Prospect Leicestershire Ltd, at which point the function 
transferred to the new company.  

Changed context 

4.3. The change of government and the current focus on deficit reduction has substantially 
reduced the availability of resources for regeneration, business support and housing related 
programmes of investment. In particular emda will be abolished and its sub regional funding 
programme ended in 2011/12. Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) resources will also 
be substantially reduced. This funding situation is anticipated to continue for at least the 
duration of the Comprehensive Spending Review.  

4.4. The economic recession has also impacted greatly on the development industry where 
activity has reduced substantially over the past two years. This has been particularly 
noticeable on regeneration sites, many of which require public sector gap funding that is no 
longer available. 

4.5. The new Government’s Local Growth White Paper advocates a new approach to economic 
development in localities. In particular it supports the abolition of the Regional Development 
Agencies and the establishment of new Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPS), through 
which public, business and third sector partners can coordinate economic regeneration 
activity. The new LEPs are promoted as the preferred vehicle to draw down national 
funding, including the Regional Growth Fund, and also coordinate local and national funding 
sources. They are seen as the means to bring local influence to bear on nationally 
commissioned activity such as the Work Programme and Business Support packages. 

 

 

 



A new approach to Sub Regional Economic Development 

Leicester and Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership 

4.6. Responding to the new Government agenda, the current Sub Regional Leadership Board 
agreed to pursue the establishment of a Leicester and Leicestershire Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LLEP) to refocus economic development in the area and ensure the City and 
County were well placed to access and coordinate new (albeit more limited) national 
funding resources and to influence national commissioning activity affecting the area.  

4.7. A bid was submitted to Government for the LLEP which proved to be one of only 24 agreed 
at this stage. This gives the sub region a distinct competitive advantage in accessing new 
resources for instance. 

4.8. The main role of the LLEP will be to set strategy and prioritise and commission economic 
development activity in the Sub Region with the resources that are potentially available to 
the LLEP. This will include priority projects being submitted for the recently announced 
Regional Growth Fund. The body will also help to coordinate economic development activity 
in City and County, for instance, including cross boundary transport and planning 
infrastructure strategy and delivery. It will also lead dialogue with other public and private 
sector organisations that can assist the delivery of the economic development strategy e.g. 
in regard to skills development and tackling worklessness. 

4.9. Support funding to meet the costs of staffing and running the LLEP is not however to be 
provided by Government and this cost will need to be met locally. The funding currently 
available to the Sub Regional Support Unit is as follows in 10/11: City Council - £80k; 
County Council - £80k; District Councils - £80k; emda - £204k – Total £444k.  emda and 
HCA funding for 2011/12 is budgeted to be £50k per body related to the completion of 
existing programmes of work, after which funding will cease from these two bodies. The 
City, County and District Council’s contributions are expected to be reduced in 2011/12 by 
30% to £56k as part of current budget reviews.  

4.10. Work is underway to establish the LEP Board, planned to have around 15 members with at 
least 50% of members from the private sector. The City Council would be represented by 
the Leader and Cabinet Lead for Regeneration, Transportation and Highways. A Chair will 
be appointed from the private sector and a recruitment process is now under way for that 
position.   

4.11. Cabinet is asked to formally approve the establishment of the LLEP and delegate 
responsibility to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader to finalise arrangements 
relating to the governance and funding of the new body and the necessary support staffing 
arrangements.  

A Single Delivery Body 

4.12. In response to the changed financial circumstances referred to above, the Sub Regional 
Leadership Board instructed a review of the delivery of economic development activity 
currently delivered through Prospect Leicestershire (PL) and Leicestershire Promotions 
Limited (LPL). 



4.13. In light of the funding position the Leadership Board agreed to explore the feasibility of a 
single organisation for tourism and economic development activity across the sub-region, 
effectively being a combination of the above two companies.  

4.14. Review meetings have been held with Prospect Leicestershire, Leicestershire Promotions, 
the Business Council, the Chamber of Commerce and District Chief Executives well as the 
County and City Councils. The outcome of these discussions has been reported through the 
Leadership Board on November 4th 2010 and are summarised below.  

4.15. The Leadership Board agreed that the following outcomes should be the core focus for a 
single organisation:  

• increased visitor numbers and spend 

• increased net investment in the economy  

• increased recognition of the place 
A performance framework will be developed to manage the delivery of the outcomes and 
ensure value for money from the new body. 

4.16. It was concluded that physical regeneration activity had reduced substantially and related 
physical delivery will continue to be much less intensive owing to the reduction in grant 
funding and private sector investment. As a result it was concluded that leading the delivery 
of this activity should be moved in-house to the respective local authorities and other bodies 
who would then need to contract in specialist support as required.  

4.17. It has been proposed that a single organisation would need to evidence a sustainable 
business model featuring: 

• a provided budget of about £1m. 

• staffing costs at about 66% of total budget 

• executive costs at about 15% of total staff costs 

• increased 3rd party income 

• minimum back office services and accommodation costs 

• ring-fenced marketing and project costs  

4.18. Discussions have recently taken place with the Chief Executives of the City and County 
Councils and the respective Leaders at which it  was further agreed that : 

•••• the ownership of the SDV should be jointly held between the City and County Councils 

•••• the likely budget and responsibilities of the SDV will be confirmed and in doing so the 
City and County Councils will consult with the Chair of the LEP Board when appointed; 

•••• the City and County Councils will aim to recruit a Chair for the SDV by the end of 
January 2011; 

4.19. Contributions for PL core running costs in 2010/11 are: emda - £225k, the Homes and 
Communities Agency (HCA) - £225k, City Council - £250k, County Council - £250k and 
District Councils - £125k.  The PL core budget for 10/11 was £1.539m taking into account 
other raised income. 

4.20.  In respect of LPL core funding contributions for 2010/11 were £1.392m comprising City 
Council £546k, County Council £279k, emda £313k and other private sector contributions. 

4.21. The known reductions in funding from contributors that would impact in 11/12 are in excess 
of £1m for Prospect and approx £500k for Leicestershire Promotions. It is proposed to 
reduce the current PL and LPL contributions from the City Council by 30% from 11/12, 



reducing the combined contribution for the SDV down to £557k. The City Council’s budget 
should however be set at £614k for the years 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14 to allow for any 
outstanding liabilities to be met by the Council should they arise (see 4.24 below). It is 
expected that the County Council will also reduce their contribution by 30% resulting in a 
contribution to the SDV of £370k. The Districts position is yet to be confirmed.  

4.22 Liabilities have been considered for both organisations. Leicestershire Promotions Ltd is a 
member owned company. Information provided indicates that company reserves would be 
able to cover any incurred severance and contract liabilities.   

4.23 Prospect Leicestershire is owned by the City and County Councils. Shared liabilities for the 
City and County Councils would include any ongoing staff costs during the conclusion of 
decision-making on creating a single body, severance costs, legal costs of merging the two 
bodies and accommodation costs. It is understood that staffing/severance liabilities can be 
accommodated within available resources this year and a number of staff have been made 
redundant to this end. An additional one off sum of £120k in 2011/12 has also been 
included in the budget proposals to cover any other residual liabilities, transitional costs and 
fees associated with creating the body. 

4.24 The ongoing costs of Prospect’s existing accommodation, which will no longer be required 
by the new body, could create liabilities beyond this financial year. These could total £343k 
over the next three years if the accommodation was not re-let. This cost would be shared 
between the City and County Councils. The City Council will work closely with County 
property colleagues, who are responsible for the tenancy, and Prospect (and thereafter the 
new single delivery body) to find new tenants to offset this liability. However it is 
recommended that the Council makes budget provision, as set out in paragraph 4.21, to 
absorb its share of any remaining liability on the accommodation until the lease 
arrangement can be terminated in 2014. 

4.25 Since the Leadership Board meeting on November 4th the Chief Executives of Prospect 
Leicestershire and Leicestershire Promotions Ltd have met several times to consider how to 
generate a detailed proposal for the new body that would fit the parameters set out in 
paragraph 4.20 above. These discussions have been positive and agreement has been 
reached to establish an interim board for the SDV to continue the process of bringing 
together the two delivery bodies. 

4.26 It is recommended that Cabinet delegates authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation 
with the Leader, to finalise arrangements for the proposed single delivery body.  

 
5 FINANCIAL, LEGAL AND OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

Financial Implications 
 
5.1 The main financial implications arise in respect of liabilities associated with Prospect 

Leicestershire Ltd. Prospect Leicestershire is a company jointly owned by the City and 
County Councils.  
 

5.2 Severance and contractual liabilities have been reported to the Prospect Board by the 
Prospect Chief Executive as being capable of being absorbed by Prospect Leicestershire 



Ltd from resources available in the current year 2010/11 apart from the accommodation 
costs described below.  
 

5.3 There remains a substantial liability with regard to the Prospect Leicestershire Ltd offices at 
Colton Square. A ten year lease agreement is in place for occupation with a break clause 
available after 5 years in May 2011. The liability (shared with the County Council) to May 
2014 is £308k with an additional £35k penalty payable if the lease is ended giving a total 
maximum liability of £343k. It would be feasible to significantly reduce this liability if 
alternative occupiers can be found for the Colton Sq offices. This is therefore a priority 
action.  The budget 2011/12 proposals include an allowance for these additional liabilities 
over the 3 years to 2013/14. An additional one off sum of £120k in 2011/12 has also been 
included in the budget proposals to cover any other residual liabilities, transitional costs and 
fees associated with creating the new body. 

 
5.4 The details of the support requirements for the LEP have not been finalised. The Support 

Unit budget will be £168k (£56k from County, City and Districts) from 2011/12. 
 
 Martin Judson, Financial Services 

Legal Implications 
 
5.6 Prospect Leicestershire is a company limited by guarantee owned by its members 

(Leicester City Council and Leicestershire County Council) although the Board of Directors 
is representative of all sectors) The company specifically operates SSP funding and its 
powers and objects reflect that, although in my view the introduction of a further object of 
encouraging tourism to the sub region should not prejudice this. Both Councils have powers 
to encourage economic well being (section 2 Local Government Act 2000) and to 
encourage visitors (s144 Local Government Act 1972).  

 
LeicesterShire Promotions is also a company limited by guarantee and work is currently 
underway to establish the current membership. 

 
Both bodies are therefore legal entities in their own right 

 
The report envisages setting up a body – the SDV – and that there will be a physical 
transfer of functions. The main implications of this – for the companies – will be the 
“breakage” costs and funders requirements; the main implications for the part receiving the 
functions will be TUPE and pensions issues. Detailed legal advice should therefore be 
sought as to the transfer arrangements and the due diligence required, as well as to the 
constitution of the new body and the contracting/funding arrangements to be implemented, 
particularly bearing in mind the funding plan. 
 
 Joanna Bunting, Head of Commercial and Property Law, 296450 

Climate Change Implications  
 

5.7 This report does not contain any significant climate change implications and therefore 
should not have a detrimental effect on the Council’s climate change targets. 

 
Helen Lansdown, Senior Environmental Consultant - Sustainable Procurement 



5 Other Implications 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS YES/
NO 

Paragraph/References 
Within the Report 

Equal Opportunities N  

Policy Y 4.8 

Sustainable and Environmental N  

Crime and Disorder N  

Human Rights Act N  

Elderly/People on Low Income N  

Corporate Parenting N  

Health Inequalities Impact N  

 

6 Risk Assessment Matrix 
 
Risk Likelihood 

L/M/H 
Severity Impact 
L/M/H 

Control Actions 
(if necessary/appropriate) 

1  Vacant space at Colton 
Sq creates significant 
liability 

H H Active marketing to secure 
alternative occupiers. Budget 
to cover liability. 

2   Reduced resource for 
Support Unit impacts on 
ability to drive LEP 

M M Rationalise existing Support 
Unit structure and / or 
maintain existing contribution 
level 

3    Reduced capacity to 
support physical 
regeneration 

H M Review existing Council 
regeneration arrangements 
to prioritise activity 

7 Background Papers – Local Government Act 1972 

8.1 Sub Regional Arrangements For Economic Development Cabinet paper dated 8th 
December 2008 

8.2 Establishment Of Sub-Regional Economic Development Arrangements And Economic 
Development Company Cabinet paper dated 9th March 2009 

9. Consultations 

Co-ordination Group , Leadership Board and Lead Cabinet member  

10 Report Author 

Andrew Smith, Director of Planning and Economic Development 
 



This page is left blank intentionally.


	Agenda
	6 TRACKING OF PETITIONS - MONITORING REPORT
	Ongoing Petition Monitoring Form

	7 ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY
	8 WATERCOURSE MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT - CAPITAL PROGRAMME FOR 2010/11
	9 ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY TASK GROUP - DIVISIONAL RESPONSE - LEICESTER'S FLOOD MANAGEMENT AND ALLEVIATION ARRANGEMENTS
	10 ASHTON GREEN - STAGE 2
	11 SUB REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REVIEW

